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IN THE MATTER OF THE
APPLICATION OF FAR WEST WATER
& SEWER, INC. 9 AN ARIZONA
CORPORATION, FOR AUTHORITY (1)
TO ISSUE EVIDENCE OF
INDEBTEDNESS IN AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $25,215,000 IN
CONNECTION WITH (A) THE
CONSTRUCTION OF SEWER SYSTEM
INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
AND (B) REPAYMENT AND
CONSOLIDATION OF EXISTING DEBT;
AND (2) TO ENCUMBER ITS REAL
PROPERTY AND PLANT AS SECURITY
FOR SUCH INDEBTEDNESS.
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a u thority from the  Arizona  Corpora tion  Commis s ion  ("Commis s ion") to  (1 ) is s ue

no
m
0

e vide nce  of inde bte dne s s  in a n a mount not to e xce e d $25,215,000 on the  te rms  a nd

conditions  se t forth be low, and (2) encumber its  rea l property and utility plant a s  security

for such inde bte dne ss . This  de bt will be  incurre d for the  purpose  of cons tructing se we r

sys tem infras tructure  improvements  needed to ensure  sa fe  and re liable  utility se rvice  and

comply with two Conse nt Orde rs  be twe e n the  Compa ny a nd the  Arizona  De pa rtme nt of

Environme nta l Qua lity ("ADEQ") a nd for the  re pa yme nt a nd cons olida tion of ce rta in

e xis ting de bt, which wa s  incurre d by the  Compa ny on a  s hort-te rm ba s is  for s imila r

purposes.
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In support of this  applica tion, Far West s ta tes  as  follows:

A.

1. Fa r We s t is  a n Arizona  public s e rvice  corpora tion tha t provide s  wa te r a nd

sewer utility se rvices  in unincorpora ted portions  of Yuma  County, Arizona , pursuant to a

Ce rtifica te  of Conve nie nce  a nd Ne ce s s ity ("CC&N") is s ue d by the  Commis s ion in

De c is ion  No . 60799  (April 8 ,  1998). As  o f De ce mb e r 3 1 ,  2 0 0 6 ,  F a r We s t h a d

approxima te ly 6,800 pe rmanent sewer connections  and an additiona l 1,700 lots  tha t will

require  sewer se rvice  in the  immedia te  future , and approximate ly 14,600 permanent water

s e rvice  conne ctions  a nd a n a dditiona l 2,300 lots  tha t will re quire  wa te r s e rvice  in the

immedia te  future .

2. Fa r We s t's  bus ine s s  office  is  loca te d a t 13157 Ea s t 44th S tre e t, Yuma ,

Arizona  85367. Its  te le phone  numbe r is  (928) 342-1238, a nd its  te le copie r numbe r is

(928) 342-3347. The  Compa ny's  prima ry ma na ge me nt conta ct is  P a ula  Ca pe s tro, the

Company's  Pres ident. The  person responsible  for oversee ing and directing the  conduct of

this  a pplica tion is  Andre w J . Ca pe s tro, who is  a cting in this  ma tte r a s  the  Compa ny's

specia l counsel. Mr. Capestro's  te lephone and te lecopier numbers  are  (928) 342-3344 and

(928) 342-1242, re s pe ctive ly. His  e ma il a ddre s s  is  a ca pe s tro@a ol.com. All dis cove ry,

da ta  re que s ts  a nd othe r re que s ts  for infonna tion conce rning this  Applica tion should be

dire cte d to Mr. Ca pe s tro, with a  copy to couns e l for the  Compa ny in this  ma tte r, Norm

James  (njames@fclaw.com) and Jay L. Shapiro (jshapiro@fclaw.com).

3. The  Compa ny's  curre nt ra te s  a nd cha rge s  for wa te r utility s e rvice  we re

a pprove d by the  Commis s ion in De cis ion No. 62649 (J une  13, 2000). The  Compa ny's

current ra te s  and cha rges  for s ewer utility se rvice  we re  approved by the  Commiss ion in

De cis ion No. 69335 (Fe brua ry 20, 2007). In De cis ion No. 69335, the  Compa ny wa s

ordered to file  a  genera l ra te  case  for its  sewer divis ion by no la te r than April 30, 2008.

General Background.
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4. Audite d fina ncia l statements for the twe lve -month pe riod ending

December 31, 2006, are  attached at Exh ib it 1.
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B. Purpos es  of Financial Trans actions .

5. The  primary purpose  of the  long-te rm debt financing contempla ted he re in is

to fina nce  a dditiona l pla nt a nd improve me nts  to Fa r We s t's  s e we r utility s ys te m. The

to ta l e s tima te d  cos t o f the  a dd itiona l p la n t a nd  improve me n ts  is  a pp roxima te ly

$l7,365,765. A de ta ile d  b re a kdown  o f the  e s tima te d  cos t o f the  s e we r s ys te m

improvements  is  a ttached as Exh ib it 2.

6. The  sewer infras tructure  improvements  a re  necessa ry to bring the  Company

into full complia nce  with ADEQ re gula tions  in a ccorda nce  with the  Ma rch 13, 2006, a nd

Octobe r 31, 2006, Cons e nt Orde rs  ma de  be twe e n ADEQ a nd Fa r We s t. Copie s  of the

Cons e nt Orde rs  a re  a tta che d he re to a s Exh ib it 3 . The  Compa ny's  s e ve n e xis ting

wa s te wa te r tre a tme nt pla nts  a re  be ing cons olida te d into four fa cilitie s , incre a s ing the

Compa ny's  tota l wa s te wa te r tre a tme nt ca pa city from jus t ove r l million ga llons  pe r da y

("god") to ne a rly 2.3 million god a nd producing a  highe r qua lity of e fflue nt. In a ddition,

certa in collection sys tem improvements  a re  be ing constructed, including the  convers ion of

the  thre e  re ma ining pla nts  to lift s ta tions . The  tota l e s tima te d cos t of the  s e we r s ys te m

improvements  is  $17,365,765, as  shown in Exh ib it 2.

7. Proceeds  from the  financing will a lso be  used to re tire  the  exis ting long-te rm

de bt of the  Compa ny. Fa r We s t ha s  a n outs ta nding loa n from the  Wa te r Infra s tructure

Fina nce  Authority with a  principa l ba la nce  of $4,686,466 a s  of De ce mbe r 31, 2006. Fa r

We s t obta ine d this  loa n in 1999. The  loa n wa s  us e d to fina nce  the  cons truction of the

Compa ny's  wa te r tre a tme nt pla nt, which, a s  e xpla ine d in the  pre ce ding pa ra gra ph, wa s

necessary to substitute  surface  water for poor quality groundwater in response  to customer

compla ints . Se e  De cis ion No. 61713 (Ma y 13, 1999). The  Wa te r Infra s tructure  Fina nce

Authority de bt mus t be  pa id off, the re by a llowing the  le nde r to  hold a  firs t-pos ition
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encumbrance to secure repayment of the new debt

8. Fina lly, a  portion of the  ne w fina ncing will be  will be  us e d to re tire  ce rta in

short-te rm indebtedness  and accrued inte re s t. This  short-te rm financing was  obta ined in

De ce mbe r 2006 s o tha t Fa r We s t would ha ve  s ufficie nt funds  to unde rta ke  e me rge ncy

plant upgrades  and improvements  necessary to ensure  adequate  sewer utility se rvice  and

comply with re quire me nts  impos e d by ADEQ in the  Cons e nt Orde rs . Thus , the  s hort

te rm fina ncing ha s  s e rve d a s  "bridge " fina ncing until pe rma ne nt, long-te rm fina ncing is

obta ine d. The  s hort-te rm fina ncing ha s  be e n pe rs ona lly gua ra nte e d by the  Compa ny's

sha re holde rs , who a lso ple dge d the ir s tock in Fa r We s t a s  s e curity. The  principa l tota l

a mount of the  short-te rm de bt is  $17,735,000 The  ba la nce  of the  funds  from the  short

term financing is  he ld in an interest-bearing account and will be  used, as  necessary, during

the  ne xt s e ve ra l months  to comple te  cons truction of the  s e we r sys te m improve me nts  in

a ccorda nce  with the  Cons e nt Orde rs . The  s hort-te rm fina ncing (including a ccrue d

interest) must be  repaid in December 2007

c .

9. Pursuant to Fa r Wes t's  reques t, the  Indus tria l Deve lopment Authority of the

Co u n ty o f Yu ma  ("Au th o rity") a d o p te d  a  re s o lu tio n  o n  J u n e  2 6 ,  2 0 0 7 ,  g ra n tin g

pre limina ry a pprova l to is s ue  re ve nue  bonds  in a n a ggre ga te  principa l a mount not to

e xce e d $32,500,000 ("the  Bonds "), a nd to loa n the  proce e ds  from the  is s ua nce  of the

Bonds  to Fa r Wes t for the  purposes  se t forth above . A copy of the  Authority's  Resolution

is  a ttached here to a t Exh ib it 4. The  bonds  will be  re pa id by Fa r We s t ove r a  te rm not to

e xce e d 30 ye a rs  a t a n inte re s t ra te  not to e xce e d 9% pe r a nnum cons is te nt with the

authority's  resolution. The  actua l inte res t ra te  on the  Authority's  loan is  dependent on the

inte res t ra te  on the  Bonds  is sued by the  Authority, and the  inte res t ra te  on the  Bonds  will

de pe nd on pre va iling ma rke t a nd ge ne ra l e conomic conditions  a t the  time  of is sua nce

However, for purposes  of this  applica tion, the  Company has  used an average  coupon ra te

Terms  and  Conditions  of Financia l Trans actions
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of 6.27%. Fa r We s t is  a dvis e d by the  bond unde rwrite r, Cre ws  a nd As s ocia te s , Inc. of

Little  Rock, Arkansas , tha t this  is  a  good es tima te  of the  inte res t ra te  if the  Commiss ion's

authoriza tion is  obta ined and the  financing is  closed by November 2007.

10. As  expla ined in the  Resolution, the  Bonds  will be  is sued by the  Authority in

one  or more  se rie s  and will cons titute  tax-exempt revenue  bonds . The  Bonds  will be  sold

or pla ce d by the  bond unde rwrite r. The  Authority in turn will loa n the  proce e ds  from the

sa le  or placement of the  Bonds to Far West. To ensure  repayment of the  Bonds, Far West

will e nte r into a  loa n a gre e me nt with the  Authority, unde r which Fa r We s t will a gre e  to

repay the  loan made  by the  Authority and provide  security inte res ts  in its  plant and othe r

assets to secure repayment.

l l . In  a ccorda nce  with the  Authority's  Re s olution, Fa r We s t a pplie d to  the

Arizona  Depa rtment of Commerce  ("Depa rtment") for an a lloca tion of the  "s ta te  ce iling,"

i.e ., pe rmiss ion to utilize  a  portion of the  aggrega te  amount of tax-exempt, priva te  activity

bonds  tha t may be  is sued in Arizona  each yea r pursuant to the  Inte rna l Revenue  Code .

obta in confirmation, however, Far West was  required to pay to the  Department a  security

de pos it of $325,000 (which is  re funde d whe n the  loa n clos e s ) a nd a  non-re funda ble

confirma tion fe e  of $10,400 by July 5, 2007. Those  pa yme nts  we re  time ly ma de  by Fa r

West.

12. The  $325,000 security depos it pa id by Fa r Wes t on July 5 will become  non-

re funda ble  if the  bonds  a re  not is s ue d by the  Authority on or be fore  Octobe r 7, 2007

However, the  Company may secure  an extension of tha t deadline  until December 15, 2007

by paying an additiona l security deposit equa l to $325,000. If the  bonds  a re  not issued on

or be fore  De ce mbe r 15, 2007, the  Compa ny will forfe it its  s e curity de pos its  to  the

Department, and the  a lloca tion of the  s ta te  ce iling will te rmina te . If tha t occurs , Fa r Wes t

will lose  its  a bility to obta in funding through the  Authority a t a  fa vora ble  inte re s t ra te , in

FENNEMORE CRAIG
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addition to forfe iting $650,000.

13. As s uming a n a ve ra ge  inte re s t ra te  of 6.27%, the  ma ximum a nnua l de bt

s e rvice  will be  $1,885,074 which will be  pa id by Fa r We s t in monthly ins ta llme nts . The

debt se rvice  includes  amortiza tion of the  principa l ba lance  of the  loan over a  pe riod of 30

years . In  a ddition , a  de bt s e rvice  re s e rve  fund in  the  a mount of $940,325 will be

es tablished utilizing the  proceeds  of the  loan, a  ra table  portion of which will be  applied to

re duce  the  a nnua l pa yme nt. Annua l de bt s e rvice  ma y be  highe r or lowe r, de pe nding on

the  a ctua l inte re s t ra te  a t the  time  Fa r We s t e nte rs  into the  loa n a gre e me nt with the

Authority and the  Authority issues  the  Bonds .

14. As  s ta ted, Fa r Wes t's  repayment obliga tion to the  Authority will be  secured

by the  grant of a  security inte re s t in its  rea l prope rty and its  wa te r and sewer utility plant

a nd s ys te m, which prope rty a nd fa cilitie s  a re  more  pa rticula rly de s cribe d in

attached hereto.

15. Additiona l cos ts  a ssocia ted with the  proposed financing include  the  fees  (or

dis count) pa id to the  bond unde rwrite r, which is  e s tima te d to be  a pproxima te ly 4.5% of

the  principal amount of the  Bonds, associa ted fees  and costs  for bond counsel, and certa in

fe e s  a nd cos ts  incurre d by the  Authority. The  tota l a mount of the se  a dditiona l fe e s  a nd

cos ts  is  e s timated to be  approximate ly $l,317,509, or about 5% of the  principa l amount of

the  bonds , which is  compa ra ble  to the  cos ts  typica lly incurre d by a  s ma lle r, non-ra te d

utility tha t ha s  no prior his tory in the  capita l marke ts  and face s  subs tantia l cons truction-

related costs  and regulatory compliance issues.

Exh ib it  5

D. Effects  of Financia l Trans actions .
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16. Fa r We s t's  proforma  ba la nce  s he e t a nd income  s ta te me nts  for the  pe riod

ending December 31, 2006, a re  a ttached a t 6. The  proforma  ba la nce  she e t a nd

income  s ta te me nt re fle ct the  impa ct of the  fina ncing tra nsa ctions  tha t a re  the  subje ct of

this  Applica tion. The  Compa ny's  pro forma  ca pita l s tructure  cons is ts  of a pproxima te ly

Exh ib it
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83% debt and 17% common equity.

17. The  loa n proce e ds  will be  is sue d for la wful purpose s , a nd the  e xe cution of

the  loa n a gre e me nt with the  Authority a nd the  gra nt of a  s e curity inte re s t in Fa r We s t's

rea l property, plant and system, and the  undertaking of the  obliga tions  se t forth there in are

within Fa r We s t's  corpora te  Powe rs  a s  re fle cte d in the  Corpora te  Re s olution a tta che d

hereto as Exh ib it 7.

18. The  fina ncia l tra nsa ctions  conte mpla te d he re in a re  compa tible  with sound

financia l practice s . Fa r We s t ha s  s pe nt ove r 12 months  e xploring va rious  fina ncing

options  and be lieves  tha t the  financing transactions  proposed he re in repre sent the  bes t

a va ila ble  te rms  a nd conditions  for long-te rm de bt a va ila ble  to the  Compa ny a nd its

ratepayers.

19. The  approva ls  sought he re in a re  compatible  with the  public inte res t and with

the  prope r pe rforma nce  of Fa r We s t's  dutie s  a s  a  public s e rvice  corpora tion. The

proce e ds  of the  fina ncing will be  utilize d e xclus ive ly to  cons truct s e we r tre a tme nt

facilitie s  and othe r capita l improvements  and to repay exis ting indebtedness  previous ly

incurre d by the  Compa ny in conne ction with funding s uch proje cts . No portion of the

proce e ds  will be  us e d to pa y ope ra ting e xpe ns e s . The  a pprova ls  s ought he re in a re

necessa ry to ensure  the  Company's  ability to continue  to provide  sa fe  and re liable  sewer

utility s e rvice  in complia nce  with a ll a pplica ble  la w a nd re gula tion, including the  rule s

and regula tions  of ADEQ and the  Consent Orders  be tween ADEQ and the  Company.

20. The  fina ncing conte mpla te d he re in will not impa ir the  Compa ny's  a bility to

pe rform its  dutie s  a s  a  public s e rvice  corpora tion providing wa te r a nd s e we r utility

se rvice . Fa r Wes t has  previous ly been orde red by the  Commiss ion to file  a  gene ra l ra te

case  for its  sewer divis ion by April 30, 2008, and intends  to tile  such applica tion prior to

s uch de a dline . If it be come s  ne ce s s a ry, Fa r We s t will s e e k inte rim ra te  incre a s e s  for

sewer se rvice  to ensure  tha t the  financing will not impa ir its  financia l condition.
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21. Fa r We s t is  in the  proce s s  of providing  notice  of this  a pplica tion by

publishing notice , in the  form provided by the  Commiss ion, in a  newspaper of general

circulation in the area in which Far West provides  service. Proof of publication and a true

copy of the notice as  it appeared in the newspaper will be filed with the Commission.

Based on the foregoing, Far West respectfully requests  the following:

A. Tha t the  Commis s ion cons ide r this  applica tion on an expedited bas is ,

including the scheduling of a hearing, if necessary, on this  matter as soon as practicable,

B. Tha t the  Commis s ion e nte r a n orde r a pproving this  Applica tion a nd

authorizing Far West to incur indebtedness in an amount not to exceed $25,2 l5,000 and to

encumber its  real property and utility plant and system to secure such indebtedness for the
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purpos e s  de s cribe d he re ina bove , a nd

C . Th a t th e  Co mmis s io n  a u th o rize  Fa r We s t to  ta ke  s u ch  o th e r a n d  fu rth e r

a c tion  a s  ma y be  ne ce s s a ry to  e ffe c tua te  the  pu rpos e s  o f th is  App lica tion ,  a s  ma y be

a ppropria te  unde r the  circums ta nce s  he re in.

R E S P E C TF ULLY S UBMITTE D th is day ofluly, 2007.

FENNEMORE CRAIG, P.C.
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h
COPY hand delivered this Iday of July, 2007 to

Gordon FOX, Fina nce , Ra te s  a nd Accounting S e ction
Utilitie s  Divis io n . .
Arizona  Corpora tion  Commis s ion
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Mallory Ce rtifie d
& Public

As s o c ia te s  Ac c o u n ta n t s

Little Rock Office: Mallory Plaza, 7Shackleford Plaza
Little Rock, Arkansas 72211-1889

(501)224-3037 Fax (501)224-3039
Perrvville Office 208-B North Fourche Avenue

Perryville, Arkansas 72126 (501) 889-3251
gmallolv@mallorvcpas.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stocldwlders
Far West Water & Sewer, Inc.
Yuma, Arizona

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Far West Water & Sewer, Inc., (an Arizona
Corporation) as of December 31, 2006, and the related statements of income, retained earnings,
and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management, Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance wide auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the arnotmts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Far West Water & Sewer, Inc., as of December 31, 2006, and the results
of its operation and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

-Am

Little Rock Arkansas
June 19, 2007

Mallory __ Associates
Certified Public Accountants

1 Members American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

8



FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC
BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

AS S ETS

Utility P la nt
Land and land rights $ 902.709

Depreciable plant and equipment 43.609.842

Constriction work in progress 4_811.326

Tota l utility pla nt 49.323877

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 11.701_695

Net utility pla nt 37.6221182

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents, unrestricted 362.070

Res tricted cash 11.001.478

Customer receivables 091.653

Other accormts receivable 59.010

Prepa id expenses 79.817

Prepa id income taxes 100_080

Total current assets 12.694.108

Other assets
Unamortized debt discount

Placement agent fees 257.010

WIFA debt service reserve 508.073

Deferred rate case expense 332.263

Tota l other assets 1.208.646

Total assets $ 5L5249936

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
2
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FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
BALANCE SHEET

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

CAP ITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

Capita liza tion;

Common stock $ 1,000,000

Additiona l pa id-in capita l 6,233,279

Reta ined deficit (2,175,694)

Tota l Stockholders ' equity 5,057,585

Cu1Tent liabilities;

Short-term bank loan 17,735,000

Cu1Tent maturities of long-term debt 221,002

Accounts  payable 578,107

Payable to related company 2,373,299

Deposits and prepayments 239,568

Accrued wages 34,392

Accrued property and sales taxes 182,746

Accrued interes t 22,681

Other accrued liabilities 166,456

Tota l current liabilities 21,553,251

Other liabilities :

Long-team debt, less culTent maturities 4,465,464

Advances for construction 14,768,869

Contributions  in a id of cons truction 4,471,102

Judgment payable 1,208,665

Tota l other liabilities 24,914,100

Tota l capita liza tion and liabilities $ 51,524,936

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
3
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FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS & CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Opera ting revenue $ 7,503,827

Operating expenses:

Adminis tra tive  a nd genera l 2,016,797

Ma intena nce 1,281,756

Purchased water, sewer, and power 1,093,094

Depreciation and amortization 1,355,776

Property and other taxes 391,134

Lega l expens e 576,611

Total operating expenses 6,715,168

Net operating income 788,659

Other income and expenses:

Interest income 187,944

Interest expense (852,266)

Fines, penalties, and restitution (1,333,831)

Mis ce lla neous  expens e (2,469)

Net other income and expenses (2,000,742)

Ne t los s (1,211,963)

Retained deficit, December 31, 2005 (963,731)

Retained deficit, December 31, 2006 $ (2,175,694)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
4
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FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Opera ting a ctivitie s :

Ne t los s S (1,211,963)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 1,355,776

Cha nges  in opera ting a s s ets  a nd lia bilities

Restricted cash (I1,001,478)

Receivables (191,123)

Prepa id expenses (100,129)

Accounts  pa ya ble (219,563)

Rela ted pa rty pa ra bles (607,963)

Other current lia bilitie s 211,366

Placement agent fees 257,010

Deferred rate case expense 293,808

Net cash used by operating activities (11,214,259)

Inves ting a ctivities  :

Utility pla nt expenditure s (2,491,870)

Construction in progress (4,451,842)

Net ca s h us ed in inves ting a ctivities (6,943,712)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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FAR WES T WATER & S EWER, INC.
S TATEMENT OF CAS H FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(CONTINUED)

Financing activities:

Net increase in short-term borrowings 17,735,000

Advances for construction 791,062

Unamortized debt discount (111,300)

Contributions in aid of construction (77,604)

Net cash provided by financial activities 18,337,158

Change in cash and cash equivalents 179,187

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 182,883

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year s 362,070

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest S 852,266

Income taxes 0

See accompanying Notes  to Financial S tatements
6



FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
NOTES T() FINANCIAL STATMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations Far West Water & Sewer, Inc. is an Arizona Corporation providing
water and sewer services to customers in the Foothills area of Yuma County. The Company was
original ly organized and began water ut i l i ty operat ions in 1965 as a subsidiary of  H&S
Developers, Inc. Sewer operations began in 1994. The Company was reorganized and began
operating as a separate corporation in 1998,

Water Supply The Company obtains its water from the Colorado River and from the Yuma
area aquifer. The long-term availability of water supplies is dependent upon, among other
factors, drought conditions, increases in population, water quality standards, and legislation that
may potentially reduce water supplies. Various California water systems north of Yuma also
draw water from the Colorado River.

Public Utility Regulation The Company is subject to regulation for rates and other matters by
the Arizona Corporation Commission and follows accounting policies prescribed by the ACC.
The Company prepares its financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America, which includes the provisions of Statement of
Financial  Account ing Standards No. 71, "Account ing for the Effects of Certain Types of
Regulation." SFAS 71 requires cost-based, rate-regulated enterprises to reflect the impact of
regulatory decisions in their financial statements. The balance sheet includes regulatory assets
and liabilities as appropriate.

Business Risks Although the Company has a diversified base of residential, industrial and other
customers, r isks arise from weather condit ions, adequacy and qual i ty of water suppl ies,
regulatory decisions, pronouncements and laws, litigation, and general business conditions.

Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabil i t ies at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates,



FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(CONTINUED)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Revenue Revenue consists of monthly cycle customer billings for regulated water and sewer
services. Revenue from metered accounts includes unbilled amounts based on the estimated
usage from the latest meter reading to the end of the accounting period. The Company considers
accounts receivable to be fully collectable, accordingly, no provision for doubtful accounts is
provided for. When accounts become uncollectible, they are charged to operations

Property and Equipment Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis at various rates as
approved by the Arizona Corporation Commission

Cash and Cash Equivalents Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instruments
with original maturities at the time of purchase of three months or less. The carrying amount
approximates fair value

Restricted Cash Restricted cash consists of money market cash funds held by a bank. The
cash is released from restriction as continuing infrastructure improvements are approved for
funding by the bank

Concentration of Credit Risk The Company maintains its checking account at a bank which is
also a related party, Account balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
up to $100,000 per bank, At December 31: 2006 the Company had $401,964 on deposit at the
bank in excess of the FDIC insured amount

Utility Plant Utility plant is stated at the original cost of such property when first placed in
service. Utility plant accounts are charged with the cost of improvements and replacements
Retired or disposed of depreciable plant is charged to accumulated depreciation and credited to
the asset account together with any costs applicable to retirement, less any salvage received
Maintenance of utility plant is charged to expense

Customers' Advances for Construction and Contribution in Aid of Construction Under the
terms of construction contracts with real estate developers, including a related-party developer
and others, the Company periodically receives either advances for the costs of new main
installations or title to the main after it is constructed and financed by the developer. Refunds are
made, without interest, as services are connected to the main, over periods not exceeding ten
years and not in excess of the original advance. Unrefunded balances at the end of the of the
contract period are credited to contributions in aid on construction (CIAC) and are no longer
refundable
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FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(CONTINUED)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Income Taxes The Company is a "C" corporation for income tax purposes. Accelerated
depreciation methods are used for tax purposes, and those methods have the potential to create a
deferred income tax liability to the extent that cumulative accelerated depreciation deductions
exceed cumulative straight-l ine depreciation for financial accounting purposes and taxable
income results from operations. However, cumulative tax and financial accounting losses at
December 31, 2006 are such that neither a current nor a deferred income tax liability exists.
Prepaid income taxes on the balance sheet represent amounts the Company expects to recover
from amended tax returns filed for tax years prior to 2006.

De b t S e rvic e  Re s e rve  Fu n d Funds  ha ve been pla ced into a  res erve  a ccount with the  The Wa ter
In fra s t ru c tu re  Au th o r ity  o f Ar iz o n a ,  "W IF A, " in  a c c o rd a n c e  with  th e  p ro vis io n s  o f th e
Compa ny's  loa n from VVIFA.

Advances in Aid of Construction Advances for construction of collection and distribution
l ines and related equipment that have been paid by developers,  including related-party
developers, are reimbursable in part to those developers as a factor of revenue generated through
the use of that infrastructure. No interest is payable on those advances.

Placement Agent Fees Fees paid to obtain anticipated long-term and current short-term
financing have been capitalized, and will be amortized over the life of the loans beginning in
2007.

In te re s t In te re s t is  no t ca p ita lize d  fo r fina nc ia l re porting  purpos e s ,  a s  s uch  po licy is  no t
a llowe d  in  the  ra te m a king  p roce s s . In te re s t e xpe ns e  is  re cove ra ble  th rough the  re gula tory
proces s  a s  incurred.

Stockholders' Equity At December 31, 2006 the Company had 100,000 shares of common
stock authorized, par value $10. At that same date, shares outstanding were 100,000. Additional
paid-in capital totaled $6,233,279 at December 31, 2006.



FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDFD DECEMBER 31, 2006
(CONTINUED)

Note 2. Related Party Transactions

In addit ion to maintaining its checking account at a related party bank, the Company has
transactions and balances with other related parties, including a land development company with
which Far West Water & Sewer, Inc. works closely in developing water infrastructure in new
subdivisions and has an account payable at December 31, 2006

La nd deve lopment compa ny $ 2,365,833

Pa ra bles  to other re la ted pa tties

Tota l re la ted pa rty pa ra bles $ 2.373,299

Additions to water lines and other utility plant totaling $1,958,663 during the year ended
December 31, 2006 were purchased by the Company from its related development company, and
substantially all of the Company's balances of $14,768,869 for advances for construction, and
$4_47l_l02 of contributions in aid of construction have arisen from related party transactions
with the development company

Note 3. Short-Term Bank Loan

A bank loan of $17,735,000, secured by shareholders' stock, at an interest rate of 8.35% has
been issued to the Company for purposes of constructing and improving the water and sewer
treatment facilities. The loan matures in December 2007, by which time management expects
permanent financing will have been obtained

No te  4. No te  P a ya b le

The Company has obtained a loan from The Water Infrastructure Authority of Arizona, "WIFA
secured by plant assets. This loan is payable monthly in the amount of $42,331 at an interest rate
of 5.8l%. Total future principal and interest payments are as follows

For the years ending December 31 P rincipa l Inte re s t

237.363

z011-2015
2016-2020

828.047

Total

255.368
270.607
286.755
711.801
940.933

4.686.466 2.042.410

1 0



FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(CONTINUED)

Note 5. Fines and Penalties Imposed

As a result of an accident in 2001> the Yuma County Superior Court in 2006 imposed fines and
penalties against the Company and its former President. The l iabi l i ty for those f ines and
penalties has been recorded as current expense and as a contingent liability as of December 31,
2006. The fine as been recorded net of discounted imputed interest of 8.25%, since payment of
the fine is over several years at $17,500 per month and no interest is included in the stated
amount. The case is under appeal, and management and legal counsel anticipate that a decision
will be reached during 2008. If payments were to begin in January 2008, following unsuccessful
appeals, the future principal and imputed interest payments would be as follows :

For the years ending December 31 P rincipa l Interest

2008
2009
2010
2011

2012-2015

114,552
124,369
135,026
146,597
688,121

1,208,665

95,448
85,631
74,974
63,403

116,879
436,335Tota l

Note 6. Contingent Asset

Professional services expense includes $376,480 of legal fees paid on behalf of the former
President of the Company, pursuant to Arizona state law, that could potentially be recovered by
the Company at the conclusion of that officer's legal appeals process. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States, the related legal expense has been
charged to current operations, and the contingent receivable from the officer has not been
recorded

No te  7. Ta xe s  Oth e r  Th a n  In c o m e  Ta xe s

Ta xes  other tha n income ta xes  cons is t of the  following

Property taxes $ 294,118

Payroll taxes 97.016

Tota l $ 391 134
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FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(CONTINUED)

Note 8. Pension and Other Employee Benefits

The Company maintains a profit sharing contributory 401 (k) plan that covers substantially all
employees. Employees who have completed twelve consecutive months of service, have been
employed at least 1,000 hours and have attained the age of 21 are eligible to participate in the
plan. The Company matches 50% of  each employee's contr ibut ion up to 8% of  gross
compensation.

The Company provides health insurance for all full-time employees upon their completion of six
months of service. Dependents may be covered at the employees' expense.

Note 9. Subsequent Event - Rate Relief

On February 20, 2007 the Arizona Corporation Commission, at the conclusion of a rate hearing,
approved a $205,384, or14.04%, increase in the Company's gross annual sewer revenues.
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Sewer Project Total Costs
action 14 M.B.R. Installation $8,604,982.00

collection Svstem Improvements-Section 14 $1,447,150.00

uel Oro Temoora M.B.R. $1,178,841 .00

I el Oro Permanent M.B.R. Installation $2,719,198.00

collection Svstem Improvements-Villa Del Rey & Villa Royale $475,800.00

reasonsM.B.R. installation $1 ,722,834.00

miscellaneous
$1 ,216,950.00

oral
$17,365,765.00

g



I Install V.F.D. on influent Dumps $30,000.00
2 Disconnect Pretreatment Tank 825,000.00
3 2 Rotary brush screens (comes with two duty screenings

compactors, one duty screenings conveyor an bagger

8 tem)

$60,000.00

4 Tankage $977,000.00

5 Pipe pump discharge of anoxic tank to Head of new tank $25,000.00

6 M ixer $224,333.00
7 Blowers & Diffusers $322,050.00
8

' 4

Equipment I Z-MOD'IIM L, fully assembled membrane

modules for a capacity of 1,300,000 d

$2,019,033.00

l  Common d er for enrnpressed air l ine
|2 Permeate/bac Ilse pumps

2 Membrane air scouring blowers

2 Penneate collectionheader pipe
r*2 Air scour distribution header pi

I Backpulse tank

1 Sodium Hypochlorite addition system

for membrane remove cleaning, c/w one

chlorine dosingsystem, storage pallet,
»oping and valves

1 Citric acid addition s tem for membrane

CIP cleaning, c/w one duty dosing pun,

Storage pallet, piping and valving

l Nema 12 control panel, c/w PLC, HMI, modem

interface, dial-out emergency chatter box, motor control

hardware

9 Equipment installation $400,000.00

10 Bui ld ing s300,000.00

Foundations $150,000.00

12 Recycle pumps station $10,000.00

13 Iniiuent meter $50,000.00

14 Injection Well s300,000.00

15 Sludge Thickening $200,000.00

Mobilization and bonding 3% $152,772.48

Ya rd  Div in g  3% $152,772.48

Site wol*k 5% $254,620.80

Blectrical includes iristrumentation 8: controls 8% $407,393.28

Mechanical 5% $254,620.80

Misc. Metals 2% $101,848.32

Landscape (3% $152,772.48

Pavement $50,000.00



*..

Section 14
Palm Shadows Lift Station
Palm Shadows Force Main
s No .18 Fa Main to Palm Shadow Force Main

¢ O oIo t action Sub-Total

D 4

Engineering
Construction Management
Sub Total
Contingency

ro ! o

$111,320.00
$111,320.00

$I,335,840.00
$111,320.00

s1,447,160.00



."~.r ' m
V

J: I

I

,

\ » s5,000.00
I Dis¢onl10¢!PId:ealtln»WTank&0mWestTank

a Valves
2 IR lace diffixsers 'm East Tank with Mixers $33,200.00
3 Install new 38,000ga1lon tank with diffusers $29,w5.00

4 Pipe pump disohage fEast tank to Head of new
tank $5,000.00

5 •  •Install stable M.B.R. unit $50,000.00
6Pipe pump discharge of West tank to Portable

M.B.R.wnit $37,500.00
7 Install recycle line km M.B.R. to knead of Bast

tank (Anoxic tank) . $5,000.00
8 Connect dischaz8e ofM.B.R. to existing effluent

line $15,000.00
9 Up e blowers1 J ( $10,000.00

1 0 Portable M.B.R. rental $477,000.00
11

1
Portable M.B.R. decommission \ $101,700.00

1 ,.1»7
$0.00Mobilization andbonding %

oYang pipe <3% $23,054.25
Site work 5% $38,423.75
Electrical (includes inslwmentation & controls)

(3%) $23,054.25
Mechanical (S% $38,423.75

Misc. Metals (2% $15,369.50
|Lands e (3% $o.o0

Pavement $0.00

P

1.

ii
\

r"""'°\

i

Engineering

Construction Management

Sub total

Contingency

Proj ed T ot al

$90,680.05
590,680.05

$1,088 160.60
$90.680.05

$1.178.840.65



1 Equipment $615,769.00
l Z-MODTM L 96D unit, fully assembled

with 48 membranes per unit, 96 total

membrane modules for a capacity of
495,000 god
2 Rota brush screens comes with two

duty screenings compactors, one duty
v ¢screenings conveyoranba Er stem

I Du air compressor
1 Common d Er for compressed air line
2 penneate/backpulse pumps
2 Membrane air scouring blowers

2 Permeate collection header pipe
2 Air scour distribution header pipe
I Backpulse tank

in 1 SodiumHypochlorite additionsystem
for membrane remove cleaning, c/wone
chlorine dosing system, storage pallet,

pipingand valves

I Citric acid addition system for membrane

CIP cleaning, c/w one du dosing pump,
Storage pallet, piping and valving
1 Nero 12 control panel, c/w PLC, HMI, modem
interface, dial-out emergency chatter box, motor control
hardware

2 Etui I ant installation $200,000.00
3 Building $300,000.00
4Recycle pumps station $10,000.00
5 In fluen t meter $5,000.00
6 Tankage $327,000.00
7 Aerators & Blowers $124,333.00
8 Mixe rs $100,000.00
9 Foundations $75,000.00

10 Sludge Thickening $150,000.00

Mobilization and bonding (3% $57,213.06
Yard piping (1%) $19,071.02
Site work (1%) $12,950.00
Electrical (includes instrumentation & controls) 3%) $57,213.06
Mechanical (2%) $38,142.04

nr

,.

QST

1

Engineering

Construction Management

Sub total
Contingency

Project Total

s209,l69.12
$209,169.12

$2,510,029.42

$209,169.i2
$2,719,198.52
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1Bquipment $512,000.00
l Z-MODTML 96D unit, tilly assembled
with 48 membranes per unit, 96 total
manbrane modules for a capac of

1 ll150,000
ZRD brush screens (domes with two

1 .du screening compact<>rs,one d
temscreenings conveyor an bagger

ID sir oomvressor
1 Common d Er for compressed air line

I .2 Permeate/backpulse num
2 Membrane airscouring blowers
2 Permeate collection header pipe
Z Air scour distribution header pine
1 Backnulse tank

lI Sodium H chlorite additionsystem
cleatiln c/w onefor membrane reoov |

'chlorine dosings am, storage pallet,
Iopingand valves.

.1 circ acid addition temfor membrane
aw one d do8iDg PU"\PsCIP cieani

1Store pallet, pipingand valving
I Neva 12 control panel, o/W PLC, HMI, modem
interface dl I-out emergency chatter box. motor
control hardware

2 IEqui en installation $100,000.00
3 Building $100,000.00
4Recycle pumps station v$1 000.00
5 Influent meter ss,ooc.oo
6 'I'8nk8~8¢ $250,000.00
7 Aerators &Blowers $100,000.00
8 Mixe rs $911951.00
9Fwndations $35,000.00

Mobilization and bonding (3% $36,I18.53
vYard pi 'ng(l% $12,039.51

Sitework 1%) $12,950.00
Electrical (includes instrumentation & controls 3% $36,118.53
Mechanical 2% 324,079.02

*

J
rJ \

Engineering
Construction Management
Sub-Total Construction
Contingency
Project Total

$132,525.66
$132_525.66

s1,590,307.91
$l32.525.66

$1.722.833.57



Project Estimated Cost
Tank Covers (3 Process Trains(2 Section 14, 1 Del Ore), 3-24'
Diameter Tanks, 8-29' Diameter Tanks, 3-22' Diameter Tanks) $ 375,000.00
Enzyme System For Nitrogen Removal $ 98,874.89

s 50,000.00
Sludge Composting Operation
Site Preperatlon
Drainage Lines, Concrete Pads, and Catch Basins 125,000.00$
Equipment For Windrowing Process and Cake Movement $ 250,000.00
Hydro Geological Studies for APP's s 198,880.00
Test well for Seasons warp s 19,198.36
Odor Control s 15,531.30
Con tinge nc y $ 100,000.00

To ta l s 1,216,950.00



Far Wes t Water & Sewer. Inc

Exh ib it  3



*

E v

Q

1

2
BEFORE THE DIRECTOR OF THE

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

3

4
CONS E NT ORDE R

5

6

7 ADEQ Ide ntifica tion Numbe r: 101816 Docke t No. P-18-06

8

= )
In the  Matte r of: l )

.~ )
Fa r We s t Wa te r & S e we r, Inc. loca te d  j. a t )
13157 E. 44"' Street, Yuma, Arizona )

)
)
)
)

9 To: Far West Water & Sewer, Inc, (Far West) in its  capacity as  owner and/or opera tor of two

1() (2) Was tewa te r Trea tment P lants  a t its  De i Ore  s ite  loca ted a t 11717 Omega  Lane , Yuma ,

Arizona
11 RECITALS

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Far West acknowledges that no promise of any kind or nature whatsoever was made to

induce it to enter into this Consent Order, and Far West has done so voluntarily.

Far West acknowledges that by entering into this Consent Order, it does not resolve any

liability it may have for civil penalties for violations of any State or Federal environmental law.

By entering into aNs Consent Order, Far West does not admit to any civil or criminal

liability, or waive any right including but not limited to the assertion of any defense available to

Far West trader applicable law; Further, Far West does not adnnit, and both the Arizona

Department of Environmental Quality ("ADEQ") and Far West retain the right to controvert in

any subsequent proceeding except a proceeding to implement or enforce this Consent Order, the

validity of any Findings of Fact or ConclusiOns of Law contained 'm this Consent Order.

The undersigned representative of Far West certif ies that he is fully authorized to

execute this Consent Order on behalf of Far West and to legally bind Far West to this Consent

Order.

Far West admits to the jurisdiction of the Director of ADEO.

Except as to the right to controvert the validity of any Findings of Fact or Conclusion of

Law contained in this Consent Order in a proceeding other than to enforce this Consent Order,

24

3 12

E
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Fa r We s t conse nts  to the  te rms  a nd e ntry of this  Conse nt Orde r a nd a gre e s  not to conte s t the

2 va lidity or te rms of this  Consent Order in any subsequent proceeding.

1

3
THEREFORE, IT IS  HEREBY ORDERED a s  fo llows :

1. J URIS DICTION4

5
The Director of ADEQ has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action and is

authorized to issue this Consent Order pursuant to the Arizona Revised Statutes ("A.R.S.") § §

6 49-261, &Up 49-461.

7

8

II. FINDINGS

THE DIRECTOR HEREBY MAKES THE FOLLOWING FINDINGS OF FACT AND

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW :
9

1 0

l l

I

12

13

1 4

1 5

1 6

1 7

1 8

19 1

A. Findings  of Fa c t

1. In Ma y 2003, F Ar W e s t S  submitte d a n A quive r P  prote ction P  e nnit (APP)

a p p lic a tio n  fo r o p e ra tio n  o f a  1 5 0 ,0 0 0  g a llo n  p e r d a y (g o d ) C le a r S o lu tio n s  Wa s te wa te r

Tre a tm e nt P la nt (l50K~WWTP ). ADEQ ha s  not ye t is s ue d a n AP P  ba s e d upon the  a pplica tion.

2. In Ma rch 2004, Fa r We s t ins ta lle d a nd be ga n ope ra ting the  150K-WWTP

withou t firs t ob ta in ing  a n  ind ividua l AP P , a t the  De l Oro  s ite  loc a te d  in  Yum a , Ariz ona . Nine

hundre d a nd fifty (950) s e we r conne ctions  dis cha rge  dom e s tic  a nd com m e rcia l wa s te wa te r into

this  WWTP . Tre a te d e fflue nt is  the n dis cha rge d to  a  holding pond to  irriga te  the  18 Hole  Me s a

De l S o l G o lf C o u rs e . During  the  win te r m onths , whe n  re s ide n tia l occupa ncy is  a t its  pe a k,

flows  into this  WWTP  occa s iona lly e xce e d 150,000 god.

3. a . P re vious ly, a nd a t the  s a m e  s ite , Fa r We s t ope ra te d a  70,000 god

S a n te e  Wa s te wa te r Tre a tm e n t P la n t ( '7 0 K-WWTP ), o b ta in e d  fro m  Me s a  De l S o l,  In c . ,  in

S e p te m b e r 2 0 0 1 . Fa r We s t s to p p e d  u s in g  th is  WWTP  b e c a u s e  th e  h yd ra u lic  a n d  o rg a n ic

loa dings  e xce e de d de s ign ca pa bilitie s .

b .
20

On October 29, 1997 ADEQ issued a  le tte r to Mesa  De l S ol, Inc.

-. a uthoriz ing the  compa ny to ope ra te  this  70K-WWTP  unde r a  ge ne ra l AP P . At tha t time  the

21 E WWTP  ha d a  How unde r 20,000 god. In the  s a me  le tte r, ADEQ a uthorize d ope ra tion of two

22 2  o the r WWTP s ,  Villa  Roya le  a nd  Villa  De  S ol,  a ls o  with  flows  unde r 20 ,000  god ,  unde r a

23 genera l APP .

24
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c. During  Fe brua ry 1998, ADEQ is s ue d to Me s a  De l S ol, Inc . a

le a s e  pe rmit a uthorizing the  us e  of e fflue nt from its  Villa  Roya le , Villa  De l S ol a nd S a nte e

NWTP s  to irriga te  the  Mes a  De l S ol Golf Cours e . The  Reus e  P e rmit was  trans fe rred to Fa r

Ne s t in Octobe r 2001, a nd e xpire d Fe brua ry 6, 2003. Fa r We s t did not obta in a pprova l to

'plea s e  the  recla imed wa te r for direct reus e  unde r an AP P . Fa r We s t continue s  to provide

affluent which is  then used to irrigate  the Mesa Del Sol golf course.

4. .Far Wes t owns  and opera tes  e ight (8) WWTPs  a t s even loca tions  in the
6

Yuma 8.l'€81.
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5. During Jo nary a  nd F ebruary 2006, ADEQ rece ived s  eve ia l c ornpia ints

&om res idents  regarding intense  odors  and e ffluent qua lity concerns  from the  150K-WWTP a t

;he  De i Oro s ite . ADEQ ins pected the  s ite  on Februa ry 9, 2006, and me t with Fa r Wes t s ta ff

a nd home  owne rs  living in clos e  proximity to the  WWTP . ADEQ a ls o me t with Fa r We s t

e xe cutive  office rs , e ngine e r, a nd chie f pla nt ope ra tor, on Fe brua ry 10, 2006 to dis cus s  the

complaints  and related issues.

6. During  the  Fe b rua ry 9  a nd Fe b rua ry 10, 2006 m e e ting s , Fa r We s t

acknowledged odor related issues  at aNs WWTP, and assured ADEQ the company was prepared

to implement short, medium, and long term measures  to ensure  a ll is sues  including operational,

maintenance, capacity, and permitting were addressed.

A. To da te , s hort-te rm me a s ure s  imple me nte d by Fa r We s t a t the  Cle a r

Solutions  WWTP include :

i. Re trofitting ve nts  on the  two (2) s ub-s urfa ce  Eve r gla s s  re a ctors  into

which raw sewage  is  piped, such tha t some vents  a re  made  a ir tight, while  the  main vents  a re

piped to a  granula r activa ted carbon column feodor removal

Ra is ing the  decant Ann in the  reactors  to a llow longe r re s idence  times

19 which will facilita te  oxida tion proces ses , reduce  odorous  gas  formation, and produce  a  higher

qua lity e ffluent

111 Re a ctiva te d the  70K-WWTP  which is  curre ntly tre a ting a pproxima te ly

40,000 god of influent was tewater, and

Mee ting with re s idents  to addres s  the ir concerns  rega rding e fficient and

effective  opera tion of the  WWTP
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Dis cus s ions  with de ve lope rs  in the  Me s a  de l S ol s ubdivis ion re ga rding

proble m s  with  the  De l Ore  WWTP  a nd the  ne e d for a dditiona l wa s te wa te r ca pa c ity be fore

service  can be  extended

During subsequent mee tings  and via  e -ma il Fa r West has  s ta ted tha t, collective ly

i the se  me a sure s  ha ve  re sulte d in: 1) s ignifica nt re duction in ga se ous  odors  a t a nd a round the

WWTP , 2) e ffluent qua lity tha t mee ts  recla imed wa te r s tanda rds , and 3) tempering of re s idents

concerns. ADEQ  conduc te d  a  fo llow up  ins pe c tion  on  Ma rch  l,  2006 to  ve rify Fa r We s t's

representa tions  rega rding the  implementa tion of short te rn measures

To da te , Fa r West has  se t in motion the  following medium te rn measures

Orde re d a  50,000 god Biologica l Nutrie nt Re mova l (BNR) Wa s te wwa te r

Tre a tme nt P la nt (50K-WWTP ) into which some  of the  influe nt wa s te wa te r will be  pipe d, thus

re ducing the  hydra ulic  a nd orga nic  loa d on the  Cle a r S olution WWTP . This  50K-WWTP  is

scheduled to be  insta lled and made  opera tiona l by May 31, 2006

Orde re d a  filtra tion unit a nd UV dis infe c tion s ys te m  to be  ins ta lle d by

Ma y 31, 2006. The se  units  will a id in producing highe r qua lity e fflue nt, a nd

De ve lope d  p la ns  to  a e ra te  flows  a t Lift S ta tion  #12 ,  one  o f two  lift

s ta tions  tha t pumps  influe nt to the  tre a tme nt pla nts , such tha t dissolve d oxyge n conce ntra tions

I a re  increased, and odorous gas formation is  reduced

As  a  long-te rm me a sure , Fa r We s t's  obje ctive  is  to ins ta ll a  450,000 god

wa s te wa te r tre a tme nt pla nt (450K-WWTP ) a t the  De i Oro s ite , to be  comple te d in pha se s . This

450K-WWTP  will re pla ce  a ll of the  pre vious ly me ntione d WWTP s. Fa r We s t pla ns  to comple te

P ha s e  I. which would involve  cons truction a nd ins ta lla tion of fa cilitie s  to tre a t a  minimum of

225,000 god of influe nt wa s te wa te r, by Augus t 31, 2007

Conclus ions  of La w

The  150K-WWTP  a nd  70K-WWTP  a re  e a ch  a  "F a c ility" purs ua n t to

20

22

2

By ope ra ting the  150K-WWTP  without a n AP P , Fa r We s t viola te d A.R.S

discha rges , firs t obta in an AP P
23

24
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4. By ope ra ting the  70K-WWTP  in e xce s s  of 20,000 god without a n

2

discharges or who owns or operates a facility that discharges, first obtain an APP.

3 5. By providing e fflue nt for irriga tion of the  Me s a  De l S ol Golf Cours e

4 without firs t obta ining a n individua l AP P , Fa r We s t viola te d A.A.C. R18-9-704(A), which

5 requires  tha t a  sewage  facility owner or opera tor provide  recla imed water for direct reuse  only

under an individual APP amended under A.A.C. R18-9-703(C)(2).

6 6. By e mitting from the  De l Oro WWTP  ga s e ous  or odorous  ma te ria ls

7 which unreasonably interferes with the comfortable  enjoyment of life  or property of members of

g the  community, Fa r We s t viola te d A.A.C. R18-2-730(D), which prohibits  a ny pe rson from

emitting odorous or gaseous materials from equipment, operations or premises in such quantities

9 or concentrations as to cause air pollution.

1

10 111. CO MP LIANCE S CHEDULE

12

13

11 THE DIRECTOR HEREBY ORDERS and Far West agrees to comply with the provisions of

dies Consent Order as follows:

A, By no later than March 31, 2006, Far West shall:

i. Assess the structural integrity and operational capability of the previously used

14 70K-WWTP and currently in operation at the  Del Oro site ,

ii. Perform any necessary repairs, replacements and maintenance, and

Maintain operation of this WWTP to treat n o m ore than a in maximum in monthly
15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

111.

16 da ily ave rage  of 50,000 god of wastewa te r.

Fa r West sha ll a lso implement the  appropria te  enginee ring, cons truction, ope ra tiona l and

other appropria te  measures to ensure  tha t odorous or gaseous materia ls  a re  not genera ted by, and

emitted 18:om, this  70K-WWTP  in such a  manne r a s  to inte rfe re  with the  comfortable  enjoyment

of life  or prope rty by me mbe rs  of the  community, a nd submit to ADEQ a  writte n de scription of

such engineering and other appropria te  measures.

B. By no la te rtha n Octobe r 31, 2007 Fa r We s t s ha ll ce a s e  ope ra tion of this  70K-

W W TP ,  a nd  s ubm it to  ADE Q 's  G roundwa te r S e c tion  a  c om ple te  AP P  a pp lic a tion  fo r its

closure . S hould the  Groundwa te r S ection issue  to Fa r West a  de ficiency le tte r(s ), Fa r West sha ll

sa tis fy the  conditions  of such a  de ficie ncy le tte r(s ) within de a dline (s ) s ta te d in the  le tte r(s ), Fa r

West sha ll comple te  a ll closure  requirements  a ssocia ted this  WWTP  by no la te r than nine ty (90)

days a fte r rece ipt of the  APP  for closure , or a s  othe rwise  s ta ted in the  APP  .
24
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1 C. By no la te r than May 31, 2006, Fa r West sha ll ins ta ll and commence  ope ra tion of

2 the  ne w 50K-WWTP , filtra tion unit, a nd ultra  viole t (UV) dis infe ction s ys te m a t the  De l Oro

s ite , to tre a t a  ma ximum monthly da ily a ve ra ge  of 50,000 god of wa s te wa te r influe nt. P rior to

1o p e ra tio n  a t" th is  W W TP ,  F a r W e s t s h a ll s u b m it to  ADE Q  a n  e n g in e e r's  c e rtific a te  o f

4 x completion s inned and s mealed b y an Arizona R registered P professional E engineer, verifying that

5 this  50K-WWTP  is  cons tructe d a nd ins ta lle d in a ccorda nce  with a ll a pplica ble  s ta nda rds . Fa r

West sha ll a lso implement the  appropria te  engineering and othe r appropria te  measures  to ensure

6 tha t odorous  or ga se ous  ma te ria ls  a re  not ge ne ra te d by a nd e mitte d from this  50K-WWTP  in

7 such a  ma nne r a s  to inte rfe re  with the  comforta ble  e njoyme nt of life  or prope rty of me mbe rs  of

g the  com m unity,  a nd  s ubm it to  ADEQ  a  writte n  de s c rip tion  of s uch  e ngine e ring  a nd  o the r

g appropriate measures.

i D. By no la te r tha n Octobe r 31, 2007 Fa r We s t s ha ll ce a s e  ope ra tion of this  50K-

10 WWTP ,  a nd  s ubm it to  ADEQ 's  G roundwa te r S e c tion  a  com ple te  AP P  a pp lica tion  fo r its

11 closure . S ubse que ntly, should the  Groundwa te r S e ction issue  to Fa r We st a  de ficie ncy le tte r(s ),

Fa r We s t sha ll sa tis fy the  conditions  of such a  de ficie ncy le tte r(s ) within the  de a dline (s ) s ta te d

12 in the  ie tte r(s ). Fa r We s t sha ll comple te  a ll closure  re quire me nts  a s socia te d this  WWTP  by no

13 la te r tha n nine ty (90) da ys  a fte r re ce ipt of the  AP P  for closure , or a s  othe rwise  provide d in the

14 AP P .

9

E. Be ginning Ma y 1, 2006, Fa r We s t s ha ll tre a t, a t the  150K-WWTP , a  ma ximum

15 monthly da ily a ve ra ge  flow of 80,000 god. By no la te r tha n Octobe r 31, 2007 Fa r We s t s ha ll

16 ce a se  ope ra tion of this  WWTP , a nd submit to ADEQ's  Groundwa te r S e ction a  comple te  AP P

17 a pplica tion for its  closure . S ubse que ntly, should the  Groundwa te r S e ction is sue  to Fa r We s t a

de ficie ncy le tte r(s ), Fa r We st sha ll sa tis fy the  conditions  of such a  de ficie ncy le tte r(s ) within the

18 de a dline (s ) s ta te d in the  le tte r(s ). Fa r We s t sha ll comple te  a ll closure  re quire me nts  a ssocia te d

19 th is  WVVTP  by no  la te r tha n  n ine ty (90) da ys  a fte r re ce ip t o f the  AP P  for c los ure ,  o r a s

20

21

22

23

othe rwise  provide d in the  AP P . .

Be ginning the  e ffe ctive  da te  of this  Conse nt Orde r, a nd until furthe r notifica tion

by ADEQ, Fa r We s t sha ll:

. Colle ct, on a  weekly ba s is , influent was tewa te r sample s  from a  loca tion a fte r the

screens , and repre senta tive  of influent flows. Fa r West sha ll have  these  samples  ana lyzed by an

Arizona  s ta te  ce rtifie d la bora tory for pH (a lso to be  de te rmine d on s ite ), tota l suspe nde d solids
24
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(TS S ), 5 da y biologica l oxyge n de ma nd (BOD), nitra te  -nitrite , a lka linity (a lso to be  de te rmine d

2 on s ite ), a mmonia , a nd tota l kje lda hl nitroge n (TKN),

ii. Colle ct, on a  we e kly ba s is , from e a ch WWTP  tha t is  ope ra tiona l, re pre se nta tive

e ffluent sample s  Md have  them ana lyzed by an Arizona  s ta te  ce rtified labora tory for pH (a lso to

4 be  de te rm ine d on s ite ), TS S , BOD, nitra te -nitrite , a lka linity (a ls o to be  de te rm ine d on s ite ),

a mmonia , TKN, a nd fe ca l coliform,

iii. Colle c t,  on  a  we e kly ba s is ,  m ixe d liquor s a m ple s  from  e a ch WWTP  tha t is

ope ra tiona l, a nd de te rmine  the  TS S  a nd dis solve d oxyge n conce ntra tions  of e a ch sa mple . Fa r

West sha ll pe rfonn these  de te rmina tions  on s ite , and

8

9

10

iv . S u b m it  c o p ie s  o f a ll a n a lyt ic a l re s u lt s  to  ADE Q  with in  liv e  (5 )  d a ys  o f

notifica tion by the  labora tory, or upon de te rmina tion on s ite .

G. Be ginning the  e ffe ctive da te of this  Conse nt Orde r, Fa r We s t sha ll ope ra te  e a ch

WWTP  to mee t Cla ss  B e ffluent s tanda rds , a s  follow:

Five -da y BOD - le ss  tha n 30 mg/l (30-da y) a ve ra ge , a nd les s tha n 45 mg/l (7-da y
11

12

13

14

15

16

1.

average),

ii. TSS - less than 30 mg/1 (30-day) average, and less than 45 mg/l (7-day average),

i i i . pH - to be maintained between 6.0 and 9.0 standard units,

iv . A removal efficiency of 85% for BOD and TSS;

v. Fecal coliform - four of the last seven samples should show concentrations less

than 200 coliform fanning units (cfu)/100 ml; and

Fecal coliform - a single sample maximum concentration should be less than 800

17

1 8

1 9

20

2 1

22

23

vi.

cfu/100 m l. ,

H . By no  la te r tha n  th irty (30) da ys  a fte r the  e ffe c tive  da te  o f th is  Cons e n t Orde r,

Fa r We s t sha ll m a ke  a va ila ble  to P re m ie r s igns  sufficie nt to be  pla ce d a t one  qua rte r m ile  spa ce d

inte rva ls  a round the  golf cours e  a nd c le a rly vis ible  a nd le gible  in  Englis h a nd S pa nis h, a t le a s t

two inche s  high, to be  pla ce d. The  s igns  s ha ll s ta te , "Re cla im e d Wa te r in us e , do not drink."

I. By n o  la te r  th a n  S e p te m b e r  3 0 ,  2 0 0 6 ,  F a r  W e s t S h a li s u b m it to  ADE Q 's

G ro u n d wa te r S e c tio n  a n  a d m in is tra tive ly c o m p le te  AP P  a p p lic a tio n  fo r o p e ra tio n  o f th e

propos e d ne w 450K-WWTP . S ubs e que ntly, s hould the  Groundwa te r S e c tion is s ue  to  Fa r We s t

a  de fic ie ncy le tte r(s ), Fa r We s t s ha ll s a tis fy the  conditions  of s uch de fic ie ncy ie tte r(s ) within the

s ta te d de a diine (s ).

7 Initia ls
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I. By no la te r tha n Augus t 31, 2007, Fa r We s t sha ll comple te  P ha se  I of this  450K-

WWTP  which s ha ll cons titute  cons truction, a nd ins ta lla tion of fa c ilitie s  de s igne d to tre a t a

minimum of 225,000 god of influe nt wa s te wa te r in a ccorda nce  with a ll a pplica ble  re quire me nts

and, obta ining a ll applicable  approva ls  for ope ra tion, and commencing opera tion of this  Phase .

K. Immedia te ly upon the  Effective  Da te  of this  Consent Orde r and until such time  a s

P ha s e  I o f the  450K-WWTP  is  com ple te d ,  F a r We s t s ha ll no t a llow a dditiona l s e we r line

conne ctions  from re s ide ntia l dwe llings , or wa s te wa te r line s  Hom comme rcia l e s ta blishme nts , to

a ny WWTP  a t the  De l Oro s ite , unle s s  Fa r We s t s ubm its , a nd ADEQ a pprove s  in writing, a

de m ons tra tion  tha t the re  is  s u ffic ie n t wa s te wa te r tre a tm e n t c a pa c ity fo r the  a dd itiona l

corre c tions .
8

Iv. S TATUS  RE P O RTS
9

10

11

13

14

15

16

17
VIOLATIONS OF ORDER/STIPULATED PENALTIES

18

19

20

2 1

22

23

24

A. Fm  We s t a gre e s  to  s ubm it a  writte n s ta tus  re port to  ADEQ e ve ry nine ty (90)

ca le nda r da ys  from the  e ffe ctive  da te  of this  Conse nt Orde r, until te rmina tion of this  Conse nt

Orde r. Ea ch writte n s ta tus  re port sha ll de scribe  wha t me a sure s  ha ve  be e n ta ke n unde r S e ction

HI of this  Conse nt Orde r, a nd sha ll ce rtify whe n complia nce  with the  re quire me nts  of S e ction IH

of this  Orde r ha s  be e n a chie ve d. Ea ch re port sha ll be  a ccompa nie d by e vide nce  of complia nce

inc lud ing ,  a s  a pp rop ria te ,  s ubm itta l o f doc um e n ts ,  pho tog ra phs  o r c op ie s  o f a ny o the r

supporting infoirna tion tha t Fa r West deems necessa ry.

B. ADEQ will re vie w the  s ta tus  re ports  a nd re la y a ny dis pute s , in writing, to Fa r

West. F Ar W es t sha ll incorpora te  a ll required m oditica tions , c ranges  o r o thee  a lte ra tions , a s

re que s te d by ADEQ, within a  re a sona ble  time  spe cifie d by ADEQ.

v.
A.

pe na ltie s  of up to $25,000 pe r da y pe r viola tion. ADEQ a nd Fa r We s t a gre e  tha t the  ca lcula tion

of civil pe na ltie s  for viola tion of this  Conse nt Orde r would be  ve ry difficult.

B. ADEQ a nd Fa r We s t the re fore  a gre e  tha t if Fa r We s t fa ils  to comply with a ny

re quire m e nt of this  Cons e nt Orde r, Fa r We s t s ha ll pa y a  s tipula te d pe na lty purs ua nt to the

schedule  be low:

P e riod of Fa ilure  to Comply

is* to 30th day

319 to 60*' day

Alte r 60 da ys

Penaitv Per Dav of Viola tion

$3,000 per day per violation

$4,000 per day per violation

$5,000 per day per violation

12
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C . Exce pt a s  o the ivvis e  provide d he re in , s tipula te d  pe na ltie s  s ha ll be gin  to  a ccrue  on

2 th e  d a y th a t p e rfo rm a n c e  is  d u e  o r th a t a  vio la tio n  o f th is  C o n s e n t O rd e r o c c u rs  a n d  s h a ll

c on tinue  to  a c c rue  un til c o rre c tion  o f the  a c t o f nonc om plia nc e  is  c om ple te d .  Ne ithe r is s ua nc e

3 b y ADE Q n o r re c e ip t b y F a r We s t o f a  No tic e  o f Vio la tio n  o f th e  te rm s  a n d  c o n d itio n s  o f th is

4 Cons e nt Orde r a re  conditions  pre ce de nt to  the  a ccrua l of s tipula te d pe na ltie s .

5 D . S tipula te d p pe na lty p pa yme nts  s  ha ll b e  in ode  pursua nt to a  c e vil s e ttle me nt (e .g.,

1  C o n s e n t J u d g m e n t) with  ADE Q  tile d  in  a  c o u rt o f c o m p e te n t ju ris d ic tio n .  If ADE Q  a n d  F a r

6  l We s t a re  una b le  to  re a ch  a gre e me nt fo r pa yme nt o f s tipu la te d  pe na ltie s  unde r a  c ivil s e ttle me nt,

7 o r if Fa r We s t fa ils  to  ma ke  pa yme nt o f s tipu la te d  pe na ltie s  due  unde r a  c ivil s e ttle me n t,  ADEQ

g ma y file  a  c ivil a c tion  s e e ldng  the  ma ximum c ivil pe na lty a llowe d  unde r Fe de ra l o r S ta te  la w fo r

vio la tion  o f th is  Cons e n t Orde r.

9 : E . Th e  s tip u ia te d p e n a ltie s  re q u ire d  b y th is  C o n s e n t Ord e r s h a ll b e  in  a d d itio n  to

10 o the r re m e d ie s  o r s a nc tions  a va ila b le  to  ADEQ by re a s on  o f a ny fa ilu re  by Fa r We s t to  c om ply

1 1 with  th e  re q u ire m e n ts  o f F e d e ra l o r S ta te  la ws .  Th e  p a ym e n t o f s tip u la te d  p e n a ltie s  s h a ll n o t

Fe de ra l o r S ta te  la ws , nor limit the  a u thority o f the  S ta te  to  re qu ire  complia nce  with  the  Cons e nt

13 I Orde r or S ta te  la w.

1 4  I
VI. COMPLIANCE WITH OTHER LAWS

not issues

15

16

17

18

19

20

2 1

22

A. This Consent Order does encompass regarding releases,

contamination, sources, operations, facilities or processes not expressly covered by the terns of

l this Consent Order, and are without prejudice to the rights of the State of Arizona.orFar West

arising under aNy federal or Arizona environmental statutes and miles with regard to such issues.

B. Nothing in this Consent Order shall constitute a permit of any kind, or  a

modification of any penni of any ind or an agreement to issue a permit of any kind under

federal, state or local law, or relieve Far West in any manner of its obligation to apply for,

obtain, and comply with all applicable pennies. Nothing in this Consent Order shall in any way

alter, modify or revoke federal, state, or local law, o r relieve F at W est in any rn inner o f i ts

obligation to comply with such laws, Compliance with the terms of this Consent Order shall not

be a defense to any action to enforce any such permits or laws.

VII. FORCE MAJEURE
23

A. F a r We s t s h a ll p e rfo rm  a ll th e  re q u ire m e n ts  o f th is  Co n s e n t Ord e r a c c o rd in g  to
2 4 . . . . 1 .

g the  tune  ha lts  s e t forth 11 e re ln, u unle s s  p pe rforma nce  is  p re ve rte d o r d pla ye d b y e  ve nts  w hlch

I

9 Initia ls
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

constitute a force majeure. Force majeure, for the purposes of this Consent Order, is defined as

any event arising from causes beyond the control of Far West or its authorized representatives

which delays or prevents the performance of any obligation under this Consent Order and which

could not have been overcome or prevented by Far West. The financial inability of Far West to

comply with the terms of this Consent Order shall not constitute a force majeure.

B. In the event of a force majeure, the time for performance of the activity affected

by the force majeure shall be determined by ADEQ and extended for a period no longer than the

delay caused by the force majeure. The time for performance of any activity dependent on the

delayed activity shall be similarly extended. In the event of a force majeure, Far West shall

notify ADEQ in writing within five (5) calendar days alter llar West or its agents become aware

of the occurrence. The written notice provided to ADEQ shall describe in detail the event, the

anticipated delay, the measures taken and to be taken by Far West to prevent or minimize delay,

and a proposed timetable under which those measures will be implemented. Far West shall take

all reasonable measures to prevent or minimize any delay caused by theforce majeure, Failure

of Far West to comply with any requirements of this paragraph for a particular event shall

preclude Far West from asserting any claim of force majeure for that event.

13 a m . SITE ACCESS

14

15

16

ADEQ may at any time, upon presentation of credentials to authorized personnel on

duty, enter upon the premises at the Facility for the purpose of observing and monitoring

compliance with the provisions of this Consent Order. This right of entry shall be in addition to,

and not in limitation of or substitution for, ADEQ's rights under applicable law.

17
IX. CORRE S P ONDE NCE

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

All docume nts , ma te ria ls , pla ns , notice s , or othe r ite ms  s ubmitte d a s  a  re s ult of this

Consent Order sha ll be  transmitted to the  addres ses  specified be low:

To ADEQ :

Arizona  De pa rtme nt of Environme nta l Qua lity

Wa te r Qua lity Divis ion .

Wa te r Qua lity Enforce me nt Unit

Attention: Robe rt Cas ey, Manage r

1 l10 Wes t Was hington S tree t

P hoe nix, Arizona  85007-2935

Telephone: 602-771 ~4-614

10 Initials
4

Ill



Email: rc2@azdeq.gov

To Far West

Paula Capestro, President

Far West Water & Sewer, Inc

12486 Foothills Blvd

Yuma. Arizona 85367

Andrew J. Capestro

P.O. Box 791

Rancho Santa Fe. California 92067

10 Submissions to ADEQ as a  re sult of this  Consent Order sha ll be  deemed submitted upon rece ipt

11 x . RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

1 2

13

14

This  Cons e nt Orde r is  ba s e d s ole ly upon curre ntly a va ila ble  informa tion. I f

a dditiona l informa tion is  dis cove re d which indica te s  tha t the  a ctions  ta ke n unde r this  Cons e nt

Orde r a re  or will be  ina de qua te  to  prote c t huma n he a lth , s a fe ty, or the  e nvironme nt, or to

conform with a pplica ble  fe de ra l or s ta te  la ws , ADEQ s ha ll ha ve  the  right to re quire  furthe r

a ction

16

17

ADEQ sha ll ha ve  the  right: topursue  civil pe na ltie s  for viola tions  of a ny a nd a ll

viola tions  of A.R.S . Title  49, or the  rule s  promulga te d the re unde r, occurring be fore  e ntry of this

Cons e nt Orde r, to  dis a pprove  of work pe rform e d by Fa r We s t tha t fa ils  to  com ply with this

Consent Orde r, to tadce  enforcement action for any and a ll viola tions  of this  Consent Orde r, and

to take  enforcement action for any and a ll viola tions  of A.R.S . Title  49, or the  rule s  promulga ted

19 thereunder, occurring a fte r the  entry of this  Consent Order

20
XI. SEVERABILITY

The provisions o f this Consent Order are severable. If any provision of this Consent

Order is declared by a court of law to be invalid or unenforceable, all other provisions of this

22 Consent Order shall remain in full force and effect

23
XII. MODIFICATIONS

Any modifications of this Consent Order shall be in writing and must be approved by
-4
7 both Far West and ADEQ

Initials
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1 XIII. EFFECTIVE DATE

3

2 The  e ffe c tive  da te  of th is  Cons e nt Orde r s ha ll be  the  da te  th is  Cons e nt Orde r is  s igne d by

ADE Q a n d  F a r We s t.  I f s u c h  s ig n a tu re s  o c c u r o n  d iffe re n t d a te s ,  th e  la te r d a te  s h a ll b e  th e

e ffe c tive  da te  of th is  Cons e nt Orde r.

4 XIV. P AR TIE S  B O U N D

5
No change in ownership, corporate status, or partnership status relating to the subject of

this Consent O Eder w ill in any w ay a lier the r responsibilities o f F Ar W est u oder this C consent

Order. Far West will be responsible, and will remain responsible for carrying out all activities

7 required under this Consent Order.

6

8
XV. TERMINATION

9

10

11

12

13

The provisions of this Consent Order shall be deemed satisfied and this Consent Order shall be

terminated upon receipt of written notification from ADEQ that Far West has demonstrated, to

the satisfaction of ADEQ, that all of the terms of this Consent Order have been completed. Any

denial of a request for termination from Far West will be in writing and describe which terns of

the Consent Order have not been completed to the satisfaction of ADEQ. ADEQ reserves the

right to terminate this Consent Order unilaterally at any time for any reason. Any termination

will include a written explanation of the reason(s) for termination.

ISSUED this18 , of A w , 20012
14

15

16

17

18

1641§ Card, Director

Water Quality Division

Arizona Department of Environmental Quality

19

20 ,-

Nancy Wrona., Director

22 I Air Quality Division

Arizona Department of Environmental Quality

2 1

24

23

7
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I

I
I
I CONS ENT TO ORDER

I The  unders igned, on behalf of Far Wes t, hereby acknowledges  tha t she  has  read the  foregoing

1 Consent Order 'm its  entirety, agrees  with the s tatements  made therein, consents  Te its  entry and

2 is s uance  ba the  Arizona  Department of Environmenta l Qua lity, and agrees  tha t Fa r Wes t will

abide by the same and waive any right to appeal therefrom.

5
2009DA'1:EB11ir8 day 0£4%7'/f 4/*

!
4 l / /

y
i
I

. Paula Capestro, President

Far West Water & Sewer, Inc .
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. BEFORE -THE DIRECTOR OF THE .
ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ENWR0NMENTAL QUALITY

t

CUNSENT OHDER

Far West Wace & Savor, Inc. located at 13157
E. 44° Street, Yuma, Arizona

I

ADBQ Idcn!i5cation NUlIDb€Tl 101816 Docket No. P-105-06

Osman

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Far West acbwwlodges that no pmcmise of vs land or oanaze whatsoever was made to

iuducc it to enter into this Conseun Order, and Far -West had done so volumnrily.

I Fa: West acknowledges :her by enxezing in this Consent orslkw. it does not zesolvvany

liability it may have for civil penalties for violations of any State or Federal envlmnmeantal law.

. v By entering 'mt»0.this Consent Ondcr. Far West does not arlmiz to any civil or cxiluninal

liability, or waive any rigln including but no: llmitod to the assertion of ws' defense available to

Far Wes: unkler applicable law, Further, Far West does not admit, and both the Arizona

4

20
21
22

23
24
25

26
27
..28,

.5 I
6

l_ . )
In the Matter of: )

)
)
>
)
)~

)
. I l ) A

.7
8 To: Far West Water & sewer, Inc, (Par West) in its capacity as owner and/or operator of the

9 Seasons, Section 14, Palm Sl-widows, Villa Royale, Dcl.Rey. Del Ore. and Manvuod WasteWater

10 Treannocnt Plants (WWTPs) located 'm Yuma County, Arizona.

11 - `
12

Deportment of Environmental Quality ("A-U£Q") and FarWcst retain the right to oontrovctt in

any subsequent proceeding eoccepr dpxooeeding to implement or enfbroe this Consent Order, the

validity of any Findings of Fact or Conclusions d Law contaiNed in this Consent Order.

The unnmigtwa rqaresantativc of Far West cettiiius that he is Fully anthorizted to execute

this Consent Order on bcha1fof.Far West and to legally bind Fax West to this Consent Owde/.

Fax West gadmiw to the jurisdiction of the Director of ApEQ.

. Except as to the right to ootttmvett aN validity of any Findings of pm or Conclusion of

Law contained in this Consent Order in a proceeding Adm than to axforoq this Consent Order,

Far West wnsears to the rems and entry of this Consent Order had agzteee not to contest the -

validity or terms of this Consent Order 'm any subsciqucnt pr0owding, . . v

4 r

o
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2

3

THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED as fol]0ws:

L JURISDKTIIUN

To¢~Dix¢ctor of ADBQ has jurisdiction ova the subject .matter of this action and is I

auriamrized to issue this Consecm Order pursuant to 1144 Arizona Raised Statnws ("AR.S.") 5 § §

I

no

4

s

6 49-261, 49461, and4l-1092.07(F)(5).

. 7 . 1 re. Fmmqs .
8 THE Dacron HEREBY ivwcms .ans FOLLOWING ynqbmgg OF FACT AND

9 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

10 A. Finding; o!IFg¢;
l l Far West ohms and opcrames seven (7) WW'I'Ps lcwated in time Foothills area of

12 Ymnu, Arizona. Far What's advice ma, authorized undo the Arizona Corporation Commission

ocrdficaiion, covers approximately twenty four (24) square miles sewing about 15,000water and

6.500 wasnewaxar connections.

1. Del Qm WWTP: in Lmxn as 11717 Q44 LSIIO (Dd0r0 sue

' a During 1986, Mesa Del Sol, Inc. constructed and began operation of a

Santso WWTP at the Del Oro Site aim a design capacity of 77,000 gallons par day (aW)-

Bacauso the actual Bow to 1-bis plant was less ram 20,000 94, ADBQ approved its coverage

under a General Aquiiar Pxoteetion Permit (APP) on Oetoba 29, 1997. ADEQ also issued a

Reuse Permit for use of 1198841 effluent from the Santee WWTP to lrzigate the Mesa Dei S01

Golf Course.. . .

b. On August 9, 2001 ADBQ received a Iettem from Far West stating the

company had accepted operational responsibility, and subsequently confirmed ownership of the

Santee WWTP beginning September 30, 20o1.

25 c. By September so, 2001, flew w the Santee WWTP exceeded 20,000 god

26 Far West bas not submitted an individual APP application for operation of this WWTP.

27 . 4. On February 6, 2003 the Reuse permit audtorizdng iuigation of the Mesa

2 , Del sol Golf Course with treated affluent from the Santee WWTP expired. Far West has not

29 submitted a renewal application, but has continued to use effluent from the Santee WWTP w

30 inigana the Mose Del Sol Golf Course.

31 . - e. On May 19, 2003, Far West submitted to ADBQ an individual APP

32 application for opeaalion of a Clear Solutions WWTP with a design flow of 150,000 god ea the

. -2- .

13

14

15

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

l

I

I



1 Del Ore Site, Altimugh ADEQ notified Far What of dciiciencies in the application, the

2 | dcfidancies were not satisfswtorily addressed by Far West, and the APP was mover issued

By June 1, 2004, Far West completed construction of Abe Clear Solutions

4 WWTP, incorporating some items from the Swim WWTP. Fu: West proceeded to operate the

5 Clear Solutions WWTP without an APP

g. Bcoatwo of several complaints of scptuge odors and effluent quality

7 noncoms from residents, ADEQ inspected the Del Oro Sine timing February 2006, and issued an

8~ Notice of Violation (NOV) to Far West citing operation of the Clea Solutions WWTP without a

9 poirnnik providing reclatmod vvaxa four direct reuse wltbout obtaining to APP, and emission of

10 odorous nnatciials in such quantities as to cause air pollution.

h. Recently, Far West constructed a temporary 300,000 god WWTP w

12 roplaoo both the 77,000 god Santee and 150,000 Clear Solutions WWTP at the Del Ota site. 'Par

13 West began operations of theoew WWTP and cur: fly operates the WWTP at an actual flow

14 =8»=oty of approximately 250,000 no On October 3, 2006, net the we*rp was oonstiucted

15 and operational, Far West submitted an APP applica£ttion for a 495,000 god WWTP. That

16 application IO undo: consideration by ADEQ

ADEQ and F a Went inleted into a Consent Order to address oapndtyi

18 opezadonal, monitoring, rcpolting. and pexnnittlng issues at Rh: Dot Ore Site. The Consent Order

19 becaxne effective March 13,2006. It is the intent of the parties the! this Consent Order superoedo

20 and replace the previous Consent Order entered on March 13.2006

21 2. Villa Dal Rev WWTP - Located at 12342E. Del MW (Del Rev Bite)

22 Drnrhog 1986, Mesa Del Sol, Ina. eonsmxoted and began operating u

23 Santee WWTP at the Del Rey Sine with a design capacity of 40,000 god Booause the actual

24 How to this plan! was less than 20,000 god, ADEQ approved ire coverage under a Goal APP

25 . on October 29, 1997. ADEQ also issued a Rouse Permit for use of vealed effluent Nom the Del

26 Rey Sanloc WWTP to n-new the Mesa Del Sol Golf Course.

27 On August 9, 2001 ADEQ received a letter from Far West stating the

28 . company had accepted opcxatlonal responsibility, and subsequently confirmed ownership of the

29 | Del Rey Santee WWTP beginning Sepiembm 30, 2001

By September 30; 2001. flow to the Dot Rey Santee WWTP exceeded

31 20,000 941- Far West has nm: suhrnitzed an individual APP application for operation of this

32 WWTP

-41
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1 d. The reuse permit issued noMosa Del Sol. Inc. during F¢bmaxy 1998 ds

authorized use of neared affluent from the Villa Del Rey Sanwc WWTP for initiation of the

3 Meta Del S01 Gulf course. This permit expired February 3, 2003 and has not been renewed. Far

West oonxinuos to irri8atc the golf ooursc with ueaxedeftlucnt from the Villa Del Rey Semzcc

5 WWTP. . . ,

6 ¢. AIJEQ inspect the Del Rey Site d\1ri11H March 2006, and issued to Far

7 Won a NOV on March 14,.2006 citing Fax West for discharging without an APP, and providing

8 reclaimed yvatez for reuse firm the Villa Del Rey WWTP wlthoug individual APP coverage.

9 . 5. . Vll la.B,q9a,\gWWTP - I1089§ qt 14.000 E, 14" Spree_g_{_\§l\a Royale Sltal

10 .. 1986; Mesa Dot Sol, Inc..coneumwted and began operating a

11 . 10,000 god Santos: WWTP at Thu Villa Royale bite. Because the flow to this plan: was less than

12 20,000 ML ADEQ approved its coverage under a General APP on ouobet 29, 1997, Aoa0

13 also issued a Reuse Permit for use of trcaxcd ¢~£f1u¢nt firm the Villa Royale Sanzcc WWTP to

14 initiate the Mesa Del Sol Golf CoUrt; < `

Is ! b. on August 9, 2001 ADEQ xvceived a 1etivr firm Far We stating the

16 . company bad asccprcd operational responsibility, and subsequently oonilnmod ownership of this .

17 Villa Royale wurrr beginning sepzemba 30, 2001. .

18 c. The reuse penoiz issued to Mesa Del Sol. lu. during Pebmary 1998, also

19 authorized use of ueatea effluent Blow Me VillaRoyale Santee WWTP fer lnrigadon of the Mesa

20 Del Sol Golf course. This permit expired February 3. 2003 and has not been renewed Far West

21 continues w irrigate the Mesa Del Sol Golf Course with efilueat from lhevilla Reade santee

22 WWTP. . A .

23 d. ADEQ inspected the Villa Royale Sire during March 2006, and issued a

2.4 Maxes 14, 2006 NOV citing Far West for providing reclaimed wtltei for reuse from the Villa

.25 Royale Santee WWTP without individual APP coverage. n '

26 4. Section 14 WWTP -Located at 12651 S. Avenue 143 (Seetmn 14 Site) -

27 . a. On November 30, 2001, ADEQ issued to Par West KnAPP for opelrarioa e

28 of the Secdoa 14 WWTP at a design flow rate of 150,000 god. The APP was amended on April _

29 29, 2002, bu: that umendxuent did not include an increase in the design flow raw. 5

30 < b. olvmeh Zs. 2003, ADEQ mum Fax West oovaage under the Tue 2 3

31 Reclaimed Waxer General Permit authorizing the company no reuse eliluent to: irrigation of the i

32 Seelion 14 Go1ECom:se, and for dust control and other eonstzuotion uses. I

. 4 . I
I
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1 In January, 2005, ADEQ issued Far West a NOV citing various dates on I

2 which the Section 14 WWTP exceeded the APP disahargo \omit of 10 mg/1 to: total nitrogen.

3 . . d. . in lvlarch, 2006., ADEQ ln 9egiae the Section 14 WWTP and issued to Far

4 Wes: a NOV citing additional dates on which the WWI? exceeded Tb,elAPP discharge limit fox

5 was nitrogen. Neither the Jenuaiy ions for the Mm zoos NOVa has been unsolved, '

6 s. Palm Shgdqwn WWI? - Loeqted at 9790 E~ 40" Sfreel WM Sligdown Site]

7 e s On Aprri1 14, l999,ADEQlissuedFar WostanAPP fDQ' thepaim Shadows

8 | wwijp, pwmitting a design flow of 200,000 god The effluent from the Palm Shadows WWTP

9 is disposed of by evaporation and percolation. 1

10 b. On May 18, 2001, ADEQ issued Far West a NOV citing dates on which

11 . the Palm Shadows WWTP exceeds! the APP discharge limit of 10 mg/l for total nitrogen, and

12 for failure to notify ADEQ of do violations. ADEQ dosed the NOV on February 19, 2002 after

.is Far West demonstrated compliance by implementing corxectivc mcaalrres and submitting a letter

14 describing tbemeasiircsimplemzented,

15 During March 2006, ADEQ inspeeied the Palm Shadows Site and issued

.16 Far.Wcst a NOV citing violation of the APP discharge limit for total nitrogen, and failure to.

oonduc voriiicadon saxnnpling. In response, Far Wm submitted a March 29. 2006 labor that did

not address rho total nitrogen violations, but outlined the reason verification-sampling was not

19 done. The March zoos Novtemains unresolved

t o 6.

21 . 8 . . .On Doccnifwr 24, 1998, ADEQ iSSLlQd aninaivzaw APP for the S¢&80ns
6

22. WWTP, permitting a deign t10w of 50,000 god. The effluent from the SeasOns WWI? is

23 disposed of byovaporation and percolation. 1 .

M b. On Januaxy 3, 200$, ADEQ issued Far Wear a NOV citing violation

Zs of the APP discharge mum of 10 me/ for nitrogen. . .

26 In WS, Far West expanded the oapacityof the Seasons WWTP.80:3

27 50,000 god co 150,000 god without seeking a signirioam lnnegdmmlt of the APP.

pa 3 | d. In March 2006, ADEQ in@p¢¢¢¢a loc Seasons wvrrp am issued to Far
29 j West a March 14, 2006 NOV old ng operation of Lhe WWTP at a flow of 150,000 god without -

to am obtaining a signifioanc APP atucmdmcnt from ADEQ... ' .

oz 7. Www wwrr - Luculed an 14.o0 lm, 14* Spree! fM4\'w<z(td.Sltel -

32 'a.. on AugusL30, 1994, APP issued aniinaividwu APP for aw Meuwood

I
I

I

I

I

3

I
l

I

I

I

c.
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I
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l l

WWTP "nth a permitted design flow of 180,000 god ADEQ amended the APP on December

21, 1998 to authorize increased designiiowof340,000 god

b. On July 4, l 99'7,' ADEQ iasuod to Far West a Reclaimed War or Reuse

- pezmiv, authorizing the use of treated effluent for golf course inigaiioh. This permit was renewed

Angus:2002 for a'period of five (S) years

On August 15, 2002, ADEQ issued Far West an almonded APP

7 ' classifying the plant as producing Class B olliueat for reuse

d. On Mnroh 14, 2006. ADBQ issued Far Wes! a NOV citing violations of

the APP discharge limits at ills Mumwood WWTP for turbidity and fecal coliform, and emission

of odorous materials in violation of the air quality regulations. ADEQ will close the NOV

because the turbidity and :fecal coliform limits px~ovided'm the APP do not apply to this WWTP

B, Conclusions of Law

1. Each WWTP oared and opcratod by Far Wm is a "Facility" pursuant ro ARE. §

49-20107)

2. Far West is a "Poison" pursuant to A.R.S. § 49-206 (26)

DQ! QW WWTFII

By operating the 150, 000 god Clear Solutions WWTP without an APT

18 Far West violated A1R.S. §49-241, which roquixos that a person who discharges or Clio ovvna or

19 opexaleo a fiwilily that discharges iirot obtain KnAPP

20 b. By' operating the Santos WWTP in excess of 20,000 god without an

21 individual APT, Far West violated ARS. §49»24l, which requires that a person who disohargos

22 or who owns or opaatos facility that diaolwgos am obtain an APP

23 By ptovidhng treated effluent for initiation of the Mesa Dot 801 Golf

24 Course without first obtaining nm individual APP, Far Wont viulatzd A.A.C. R18-9~704(A)

25 which acquires that a sewage facility owner or opaaror provide roolaimod water tor direct reuse

26 only under an individual APP amordod under A.A.C. R18-9-703(C)(2)

27 d. By allowing the emission of odor f irm the Del Ore WWTP, which

28 unreasonably interfered with the comfortable eoioymem of life or propone of members of the

29 i com.m\mity, Far West yiolalod AAC. R18-2»730(D), which prohibits any person tim Omitting

30 . odorous or gaseous matodals from equipment, operations or premises Lo such quandtios or

31 conoeaxtrations as to cause air pollution.

32

14

15

16

I
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vim no Nov www
By operating the Samoa WWTP in exceed at" 20,000 god without an

individued APP, Fax West violated A.R.S. §49-241. which roq\1ir¢8 that a person who disohargcs

or who owns or operates facility that discharges iirsn obtains an APP

By providing treated effluent four irrigation of the Mesa Del Sol Golf

6 Course without first obtaining an individual APP, Far West violated A.A.C. R18-9-704(A)

7 which roquhoo that a sewage facility owner or opowor provide reclaimed wane! for direct rouse

8 only uudor anindividual APP amended under A.A.c. R18-9-703(C)(2)

By providing treated efiluont for irrigation of the Mesa Dot Sol Golf

l l Course without first obtaining an individual APP, Far West violaWd AA.c. R18-9»704(A)

12 which inquires that a sewage facility owner or operator provide teclaimod waist for direct reuse

13 only undo: an individual APP amended under A.A.C. Rl 8-9»703(CX2)

14 6. soMoa 14 vwvvr
By discharging effluent with total nitrogen con oentxaiiious in excess of 10

16 rug/l," Far Wes: violated APP #P-l050l4, which includes a discharge Limit of 10 mg/l for trial

17 Mugged

villa B°ynl¢ vvl m

Plum 8h\¢iwQ.Ww°1T
By discharging eftluont with total nitrogen concentrations in excess of 10

20 mg/l, Far West viol rod APP #p.10360s, which inclu<l¢8 a discharge limit of 10 mg for total

21 niungen

22 b. By failing tn collect veNiination samples ailzr being noritlnd of disohaxae

23 limit exccodances, Far West violated APP #P-103608, Pan I1(CX2X2)» which requires that the

24 pewmitnoo conduct v¢n'flcati<>n swmlinz within five (5) days of becoming aware .of the

25 exceedance of an Alert Level or Discharge Limit.

26 8. Smqns WWTP

By making physical changc8 ID the Seasons WWTP that increased design

28 flow Nom 50,000 god m 100,000 god without an approved significant APP auwnnmwt. Far

29 West violated A.A.C. R18-9-A21 »ca)<2)(b), whjoh requires a significant APP amcuduzcm for a

30 physical change or change in method or op tion of a sewage tréattneant facility that is pannitied

31 for 500,000 god or less when 'Jo change increases its design flow treatment capacity by 10% or

32 : more

4.
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2

1 . b. By (iisdxarging in excess of 50,000 894 of affluent, F81 WBS1 violated pm

W Table i of APP No.P-103618, which providca a discharge limit of`50,000 god

3 . I I I . <10mp1.IAt~'c11 SCHEDULE

4 T HE nmlccron HEREBY ORDERS and For West ogees to comply with the provisiOns of

5 . this Consent Order as follows' -

6 A. . Prior to bogilulning consmaotion 8nd/or lustolladon aodvitiea at any site idcntitlcd

7 in Section n. A of this Consent Order, unless othetwiso approved by ADEQ in writing, or

8 expressly provided in this Conscm Order, Far West shall obtain all required approvals. ponnlnits.

9 . lieonsos, including Section 208 conlbrmanoo uildor A.A.C. Title 18, Chapter S, Article a, iivoxn

10 . the appropriate authorities. - ..

l l ' B. Within I*1ir¥Y (30) calendar days of the e8lootive date of this Condcnt Order, Far

12 'West shall suhmir an odor control progztalnu to ADEQ for review that addresses odor concerns

13 throughout :Bo collection system, lift stolons, and WW'IPs oz all sites ideauttified Io Section H.A

14 of this Corwcnt Order. This odor control progloxn shall be dcaigncd to ensure char odorous or

15 gaseous mntoxlalls are not gonoratéd in such a manner as to 'mtorfae with the oonnforiablo

16 enjoyment oflifo or propuxy by members of the community. .

.17 c . Within' ninety (90) edcndar days of the ¢0*oetive date of this ConSent Order, Far

18 West Shall implement the odor control program, and subunit to ADEQ doeumcntation penadnning

19 to bow this pr°grem was implemented. and how it will be monitored and maintained. 1.

20 D. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of thie.Consent Order, Fax West shall

21 submit to ADEQ an area wienie map that clearly shows all areas and units connected to the

.22 : collection systems for all WWII'Ps described in Section H of this Consent Omer.

23 B. Dal Ore WWTL'S |

24 1. Within forty Bve (45) calendar days of the effective' date of this Consent

25 Order, Far West shall complete installation and begin operation of the temporary 300,000 god

26 . Membrane Biorceslor IMBR) WWTP to pzeduoe a least Class A diluent and submit

27 ciocwnentatian to ADEQ vcfifyiag that this task has been nomplctcd. As part of the installation

28 of the 300,000 MBR WWTP, Par West shall incorporate equipment it deems necessary from taw

29 77,000 god Ssnteeand 150,000 gpcl Clear Soiutiom WWTPs at two Del Ore Site, -

30 Class A etiluont standards shall be based on the following criteria: .

31 , e. Five-day BOD - less than 30 mg,/1 (30~daY) average, and less than 45 mg/1

32 (7-day average); 1 .

I

1
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TSS - less than 30 m/1 (30~day) awozuge, and less than 45 mg/I (7~day

2 avazagc)

pH I 00 be maintained between 6.0 and 9.0 standard units

Fecal oolifonn - non detect 'm'f01u of the last seven daily samples

Fecal coliform ~. a single sample masdxnum connczxuwNon abouNd be less

6 1h8n23 d`u/l00m1

f.

B NTUsorless

9

10

11

12

13
14

15

Turbidity - 2A-hour averageof filtwcwd e&1uenzshoulrl be lass than two

3.

17

19

21

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

'humidity ... At any thine fihorsd effluent docs not exceed five NTUs

2. Beginning the month in which M Consent Order baouoos effective. and

on a monthly basis thm-¢a8or, until issuance by ADEQ of an APP authorizing a dosigl flow of

495,000 god oz the Del 010 WWTP, Far West shall collect representative oflluont samples and

have them analyzed by an Arizona state ccrtiiiod laboratory for the Class A effluent parameters

EBB above plus the i'0ll0Wit'lg2 nitrate, Mum, ammonia and' TEN, and submit the analytical

results co ADEQ by no later than the tiftoentil day ofoacit succeeding, month.

Within ninety (90) calendar days airer the oiiectivo dame of this Consort

Orclet, Far West shall subtnii to ADEQ

An sdtnlnisorarively complete APP application for operation of the now

300,000 god MBR WWI?

b. An adminlisncstivoly complete application for coverageunder the Type 2

Rwlsimod Waxer Gataad Permit authorlzkmg reuse oftxoatod effluent for irrigation purposes'

An adlrlnl'nistratively complete APP application for olostxrOof the 77,000

god Santee WWTP, and the 150,000 god Clear Solution WWTP. Far West shall oompldo all

Clusuro activities with this APP application within Mindy (90) days of ADEQ's approval of the

asacoiawd cio8urc plan Should ADEQ issue to -Par West a deticioncy Lott¢J(s) regarding

Paxugraphs III.E.3.s through c. above, Far West shall satisfy the conditions at" such d¢§nie:ncy

letizr(s) within the stated deadlinc{s)

4. Until such time as For West obtains iron ADEQ an individual APP for

opemalion of a WWTP with a cosign flow of 495,000 god, prior to adding new connections to the

boy 0:0 Cvliootion Systcln. Far West shelli submit a written request to ADEQ for couawtion

approval, Far West shall inf ludo in this request the number of oonnoctions, their disohargo



volume, and assessment ofthc inmpaM of' the additional discharge on the operation of the WWTP

and efqucnz qubliry

F :  . VlllttVvi BW WWTP and Villa Rtrvttlc WWTP

Within ninety (90) calendar days of the effective data of this Consent

5 . OrOor. Pa: West shall submit to ADEQ an adxuinisuntivcly oomploto Notice of Intent (NDI), oN a

6 font apgxrovod by ADEO, Ptrrsuant to A.A.C. R18-9-A301(B) and A.A.C. R18~9-B30l, scolding

7 Cousntuction Authorization under the Type 4 Gcnsral APP, for expansion of the Dot Ore

8 Collection system." The Del Ore Collection System expansion shall Include new lift stations and

9 force mains when the Villa De! Rey and Villa Royale WWTPs am locates, to pump raw sewage

10 from the areas aorviced bY the Villa Del Roy and Villa Royale WWTPs to the Del Oro WWTP

l l Slwlxld ADEQ request additional infbzmntion and/or dam to process the NOI, Far .West'sltall

12 subunit such additional infonostion and/or data by the deadline provided by ADBQ

13 Within ninety (90) calandrtr days ofreodpt of Construction Authorizzifion

14 Nom ADEQ, Far We-st Shall complete expansion of the Del Om Collection System, and ensure

15 that expansion conforms to the plans and documents approved by ADEQ in the Constiruction

16 A\1thori2a1ion

17 Within llziny (30) calendar days of completing expansion of the Dal OW

18 Oollection System, Far West shall submit co ADEQ an administratively complete request for

19' Disolwrge Authorization pursuant to A.A.C. R18-9~A301(D)(f). Should ADEQ request any

20 additional infoxmalion and/or data to dezennine whether the Del Ore Colleolion Syslaou

21 encpalnsion conforms to the was of the Type 4 Gonoxall APP, Far West. shell submit to ADEQ

22 ouch Information and/or data by the deadline provided by ADEQ.. Far West shall not begin

23 operation of the expanded seetiohs of the Del Oro Colleelion System prior to twit of the

M Discharge Authoxizarion from ADEQ

25 Within ninety (90) calendar days of the effeozivo date of this Consent

26 Order, Ear West shall submit to ADEQ an administratively con1plete'APP application for closure

27 . of the emu ml Rey wwTp pursuant to A.n.s. § 49-252, shou1d.ADBQ tequwf additional
28 infonnaiion and/or dam m process the APP application, Fax West shall submit such adéirional

29 . inforgnotion and/or data by Loc deadline provided by ADEQ. Far West shall complete all closure

30 requirements associated with the Villa Del Rey WWTP by no later than ninety (90) calcndn

31 days &ff¢r reeoipt of ADBQ'8 written approval of the closure plane submitted with its APP

32 _ application, or sixty (60) calendar days after bezinnius operUrion of the Dot Ore Collection

I

2
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1 System, whichovcr occurs inlet. and submit wriuem uoriiicelion to ADEQ com'i:mi.ug such

2 complenicin. . . .

3 . Aluin sixty (60) calendar days of beginning operation of the Oolloctlou

4 Syetcm. Far West shall close The Villa Royale WWTP pursuant to A.A.C. R18-9-A306(A)(l),

5 which roqulxes that Far West pqrforrns the following:

6 < a Remove malarial that may conuibuWw a continued dilsohargc; and

| b. Eliminate. to the grcelwsl degree prapciqal, any reasonable probability of

8 tl1rther die4harge&on1thc§wiliry and oiexoeeding any Aqu.iferWa1ar 0u81i£Y Standard at tbe

9 | applicable point of compliance. .

10 |  ' Upon complciion of this task, Far West shall submit written notliioamiou -to ADEQ

l l oon5nu\ing its complction. . .

.12 G. Sqvtion 14 W W I I '

13 1 Within thirty (30) calender days of the discoive date of this cénaem Ordct,

14 Par West shall submit to ADEQ on a form prescribed by ADEQ, a Request to Eaqaedlw third

is party review of an APP application, pursuant to A.R.s. §§ 49.241.02(D) and 49-203(Cl. Far

16 Wes: agrees me puyany additional foes associated with a third party cxpoditcd review of its APP

17 application. Within this same thirty day period, Far West shall submit to ADEQ a requca for a

18 minor modification to the Section 14 WWTP APP authorizing the installation of the appropriate

19 twhlnology that would brine the Section 14 WWTP in compliance with in Inlet! nitrogen APP

20 limit. Fa: West shall instailsueh appropriate technology Within sixty (60) days of receipt of the

21 ntodlfied APP and snlsmit to ADBQ written documentation confilnnniing this task has Mn

22 : completed. | |

23 ; . 2. Within' ninety (90).oa1endar days of the effective date ofthis,Conae»1:l Order,

24 'Far.West shall- subrnit w ADEQ an etilministzatively complete APP application for expedited

25 review for a significant modification to its current APP, to authorize expansion of the design

26 flow of Ibo WWTP firm i50,000 god no a 1.300.060 god. Far West shall submit to ADEQ any

27 additional information and/or data requested by ADEQ within the deadline provided by ADEQ .

28 3. Within (200) calendar days of the effective date of this Consent Order, Far

29 West shall submit to ADEQ an administratively complete Notice of Intent (NOI), on a form

30 approved by ADEQ, pitrsuent to A.A,C. Rl8~9A30l(IB) and A.A.C. R~18~9-E30l, seeldng

31 Constriction Authorization for expansion of the Section 14 Collection Systems. The expansion

32 shall include e new lift station, force main and associated euoeiutes, devices and appurtenances

a
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I to pump raw sewage tito the area serviced by the Palm Shsldowa WWTP to Thx: Section 14

2 WWTP. Lf ADEQ requests additioNal infoxwnnaziou and/or data Tb proocss ten NOI, Par West

3 sbdl submit such aldditionnl information mind/Oi' date by the deadline provided by the deadline

4 : provided by ADEQ.

5 ' Within sixty (60)-calendar days of receipt of Consuuorioo' Authorization

6 Fiona ADEQ, Far West shall oompleu: cxpandon of the Section 14 Collection Syslcm and ensure

7 - that the expansion oozzfomas to the plans and documents approved by ADEQ inly Construction

8 Authorization. . `

9 5. Within thirty (30) calendar days Of oompleting.oxpan8iQn of the Section

10 14 Collection System, Fa Wool shall submit to ADEQ an adminianrallvely oomploto roquoat for

11 Discharge Authoxizatiou pursuant to A.A.c.~R1s-9-A301(D)(o.- should ADEQ We:-sv my

12 additional information auditor dm to dctumine wholheo the expanded seoxions of the Section 14

13 Collection System conform to the tonne of the Type 4 General APP, Far West shall submit to

14 ADEQ such lnfoxnnation and/or data bY who deadline provided by ADBQ. Far West shall nor'

15 commence opernldoo of the expanded sections of Rh: Notion 14 Collation System prix to

16 receipt of the Dischaurgo Authorization firm ADEQ.

17 H Palm Slndotvs warp

18 I , Within ttsitty (30) oalcndar days of the elToo\5vc date of this Constant

19 Order, Far West shall aubtuit to ADEQ a request for a minor modification to the Palm Shadows

20 WWTP APP authorizing installstlon of the appropriate tcohuology that would bring the palm

21 Shadows WWTP 'm compliance with its total nitrogen APP limit. Far Wost shall install such

22 appropriate technology within sixty (60) days. of reooipt of the tnoditfied APP, sud submit w

23 ADEQ written documentation continuing this task has boon ooxnplotod.

24 2, Within two hundred (200) calendar days of the effective date of this

i s Consent Order, Far West shall submit to ADEQ a Closure Plan for the Palm Shadows WWTP

26 pursuant to AAC. R18-9-A306 and Part ILE of APP No. P~103608. Should ADEQ request

27 additional infomsstion and/or data to process the Closure PIAII. Far West shall submit such

28. additional information and/or dab! by the deadline provided by ADEQ.

29 i Within ninsry (90) calendar days of the receipt ofADEQ'a 'mitten

30 approval of the Closure Plan, Far West shall oOmploto all closure requirements as eooiatcd with

31 ' the Palm Shadows WWTP. . .

l
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16

17

18

19

20

21

1 4. Beginning on the effeodve date of this Consent Order. Wwe approved by

2 ADEQ, Far West shall not comnstruot any uetw connections to the existing Palm Shadows WWTP

3 oolleOtion syetnm .

. 4 I. Seasons WWTP

5 1. Within WV? (30) calendar days cf the effective due of this Consent

6 Ordeal, Far West shall 8\1b4nit tO ADEQ an application to am cud APP No, P-103618 authorizing

7 an increase in design bow of the Seasons WWTP from 50,000 god to 1 s0,o00 god pursuant to

8 A.A.c. R18-9-A211(B). ShoWnADBO request addidonad inlonnation and/or data to pwccss the

9 app licadpq, Far West shall submit .such additional information and/or Dana by the deadline

10 pwvidd by ADEQ. Within this same thirty (30) calendar daY Period. Far West shell submit to

11 ADEO erequost for a minor modification to the Seasons WWTP APP authorizing installation of

12 the appxopziatz technology that would bring the Seasons WWTP in Mmpliauce with its total

is nitrogen APP ML Fax' woo own Inman such =4==pf0>fia1° octmology within my Isa) days of

14 receipt of the modified APP, and- submit no ADEQ written documentation con6ruaisng this task

is w b w m w l o . `

2. Until such tim as ADBQ issues to Far West the amended APP for

operation at a design flow of 1s0,000 god, Par.Wcs1 shall opemnaxe the Seasons WWTP with a

maximum design flow of.70,000 god, and moot all other mans and conditions of APP No. p-

103618. .

3. If the amcndeo APP does not provide a soheéule for completion of the

expansion of the Se8scn§ WWTP. Far West shall complete all approved upgrades within ninety

22 (90) days of the issuance of the amended APP. ' '

23 l

.24 A. A Far West agrees -to sulamim a wren seams report lo ADBO every ninety (90)

25 oalondar days 80111 tlwoffoctivo date of this Consent Coder, until Wzzninniivn of this Consent

26 Order. Each written status rcpon shall describe we measures have been taken under Section III

27 of this Consent Order, and shall certify when compliance with the requigomonts of Section IH of

28 this Order has been aohicved. Each report shall be accompanied by evidence of compliance

29 iNcluding, as appropriate; submittal of* documents, photographs or copies of any ozhor aupponing

30 : information that Far Woof deems necessary.

W. STATUS REPGRTS
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1 B. ADEQ will review the status r¢porI8 and rciay any dispuhos, in writing, to Far

2 West. Far West shall incorporate all required modifications, changes or olhcT a1tcraiions,.8s

3 requested by ADEQ, within a reasonable time epeciied b ADBQ.

4 v. vi.QLAn0ns on napn1vsTn~uL¢mm rmnALnns
5 A. Under AJLS. §49»262, violation of this Consent Order subjects Far West to civil

6 penaldea of up to $25,000 pp: day per violation. ADEQ and Far West agree that the calculation

7 of civil penalties for violaxicn of this Consezut Order would be very difficult.

8 B. ADEQ and Far West therefore agree that if Fa West fails to comply with any 1

9 requirement of this Consent Onida, Far West shall pay a stipulated penalty pursuant to the

10 schedule below' '

l l Period0fF*=ilure to Cfemnlv Pwltv Per Dav of Vlnlmi<>n .

12 1" w 30"' aNy $3,000 per day per violation
13 av* w 60"° day $4,000 Per day per violation
14 A88160 days $5,000 per day per violation ,

15 c; Except as 0tberwi8¢» croWded Newman stipulated penalties snap begin fn accrue on
16 the day that performance is due or that a vioiadon of this Consent Order owns and shall

17 continue to accrue until correction of the act of noncompliance is completed. Neither issuances

18 by ADEQ nor receipt by Far Wost of a Notice of Violation of the terms and conditions of this

19 . Consent Order are conditions precedent to the accrual of stipulated penalties.

20 D. Stipulated penalty payments shall be made pursuant to a civil settlement (c.g.,

21 Consent .Tudgmcnt) with ADEQ died m a noun of compctcut jtnrlsdlcdon; If ADEQ and Far

22 West are unable to roach moment for payment cf stipulated pcnaitica tmdor a civil settlement,

23 or if Far West fails to nnako payment of stipulated penalties clue under a civil settlement, ADEQ

24 may tile a civil action sWciog the maximum civil penalty allowed under Federal or State law for

25 . violation of this Couscut Oztlor,.

26 The stipulated penalties required by this Consent Order shall be 'm addition to

27 . other remedies or sanctions available to ADEQ by reason of any failure by Far West to comply

28 with the rcquilcmcnts of Federal or State laws. The payment. of stipulated pemaities shall not

29 relieve Far Wcstfrom compliance with the terms and conditions cf Thia Conant Order or Federal

30 or State laws. not limit the authority ofthc State to require compliance with the Consent Order or

31 Stale law.

32 \
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vI. C0MPLIANQE wax or mm LAWS

This Consent Order does not encompass issues tegnrdimlg relcesw, contamination

sources, oper8tioI1B, facilities or processes not apne8siy oovercri bY who $411118 Of this Consent

4 Order, and are without prejudice to the n'ghts of the Stale of Arizona or Far Wore arising under

5 . any federal ox Arizona environmental stanrres and rules with regard to such issues

B. Nothing in this Consent Order shall constitute a permit of any kind, or a

7 'mediiicaition of any permit of auykind, Oran agreement to issue apelrrnirof any kind rmcia

8 federal, stare or lead law. or relieve Fa: West in any manner omits obligation w apply for, obtain

9 and comply "it all applicable pernoirs. Nothing in this Consent Order shall in any way alter

10 modify or revoke federal. 'sralo, or local law. or relieve Far West in any manner of its obligation

i t to comply with such laws, Compliant with the terms of this ConseM Order shall nor be a

12 defense to any action to enforvc any such permits or laws

13 VII. r12n<;r;.i~1A41wunr

14 A. Far West shall perform dl the requirements of this Consent Order awarding to

15 the time limits ser forth heroin, unless pcrfozrannvc is prevented or delayed bY events Which

16 constitute efbrce mqfevre. ForCe majeure, for the purposes of this Consent Order, is defined as

17 any event i t s from causes beyond the control of Fax West or its authorized represewtivee

18 which delays or prevents die performance of any obligation under this Consent Order and which

19 could not have 'rem overcome or prevented by Fax Wm The iinagclal inability of Per West to

20 comply with Me terms of this Consent Order shall not constitute farce mqjeure

B. In the event of ltforee majeure, the time for ormanee of the activity a8lec1ed

22 by theforce niqiewe shall be determined by ADEQ and mended for a 1>°r19¢i no luger then the

23 delay caused by the force majeure. The time for pexfbnnanee of aNy activity dependent on the

24 ; delayed activity shall be similarly extended In the event of a force mqyewe, Far West shall

25 notify ADEQ in writing within' five (5) calendar days Mer Far West or its agents become aware

26 of the occurrence. The written notice provided to-ADEQ shall describe 'm d¢t8il the event, the

27 I anticipated delay. the measures taketh and to be taken by Far West Lo prevent or delay

28 2and a proposed timetableunder which those measures will be implanented. Far West sham exe

29 all reasonable measures w prevent or minimize any delay caused by tlwjbree majeure. Failure

30 - of Far What to comply with any requirements of this. paragraph for a particular event shell

31 f preclude Far West from aseeztilug any claim of farce majeure for that event

32
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7
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9 \

10 ToADEQ'

1. 4 a m SITE ACCESS

2 ADEQ may at any time, upon prcsanrazion of uezientials w amhodzwd porsozmelon doxy,

3 purer upon the pranisea at the Facility for the purpose of observiNg and monitoring compliant

4 with the pfoviaions of this Consent Order. This right of cntzy shall be in addition to, and not in

.5 . limitation of or substitution for. ADEQ's n`gb1s under applicable law.

IX, cQlw.\9sr0>11n~*<vE

All documents, materials, plans. rwtices, or other iwis submitted as a result of infs

Couwnt Order shall be transmitted to the addresses specified below:

l
I

I
I

I

.-11

12

13

14

15

` 1 6

17

18

19

Arizona D6p811ment of Environmental Quality
Walt! Quality Division 1
Water Qvdiw Enforcement Unit
At£¢u¢i0u: Robe# Casey, Manager
1110 WwtWalshington Street
Funnily,Arizona asw7-2935
Telephone: 602-771 -4614
BmaiJ: :c2@azdeq.gov

20 To Far Wm:

21
22- .
.23
2.4

PP26

Paula Cap¢auv.>,.P&¢es&dent
Far West Wars: 84 Sewer. IM.
12486 Foothills Blvd. I A

Yuma, Arizona 8536?

I

Submissions to ADEQ ea a result of :bis Consent Or6.or shall be ckemed suhnnitied upon receipt.

x , n x q s n m / A r r o w  a s '  m o m

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

This Colnseent Order iS baaed' a01o1y upon cunontly available Lnfonuanon

addlitiolnal information is disoovoxod W bielw indicates that the actions Laker under this Consent

Order arc or will be inadequate m protoot human health, safety, or the ehvironmenx, or .to

conform with applicable federal or state laws, ADEQ shall have the right to require further

action

B. ADEQ shall have few right: m pursue civil penalties for violations of any and all

violations of mas. Title 49, or the rules promulgated thereunder. owning boforc entry of this

Conscni Order; to disapprove 0f` work performed by Far West that fails to comply with this

Consent Order; L0 take enforocmenf action for any and 811 violaOous ofthi/s Consent Order; and

I
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in.MODIF'lCATlON9
l
L

am. l11FFEC'1"IVE DATE

10V~l'ARTIl55l30VN'D

I : to take. mfometnenr action for any and all violations of A.tLs. Title 49, or the rules pwmudgatod

2 . thntsxmder, occurring afar the my ofthls Consent Order.

3 XI-sr1vrwn.n*y
4 The provisions of this Consent Order are severable. If any provision of this Consaat

5 Order is declared by a Kun of law to be invalid or urunnfonccable, all other provisions at' this

6 Consent Oncer shullremélirl in full force and effort
7 .

8 Any- modifications of thos? Consent Order shall be in writing and must be -approved by

9 both Far West and ADEQ.

10 I

11 . The effeclivo date of this Conseml Order shall be the (law this Consent Order is signed by

12 ADEQ and. Par West. If slick aignarzzrss occur on diifcrcnt dares, the lam dam shall be the

'13 . cfll~:c~tlved81¢0fd1isConscntOnder. - ' | . v

in
15 No change in ownoznship, corporals status, or partnership slams rolrsting to the subject of

16 this Consent Order will in any way alter the rWwMbMdw of Fax West under this Consent

17 Order. Far West will be nesponsiblo, and will roman rwponsmlNe for oanying our all activities

18 r¢quiw6 under this Consent Otckr. ' . I

I
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1

2 xv.I¥=p.mH*A1'I0r4
3 The provisions of this Consent Order shall be ,iicounod satisfied and this Consent Order shall be

4 terminated upon xocoipt of written notification from ADEQ that Far West has domcuscrated, tO

S the satisfaction of ADEQ, that all 0>` the toms of this Consent Order have been oompletai Any

6 denial of a request for iermiriation from Par West will be 'm writing and deaodbe which terms of

7 the Consean Order banc not been completed to the satistiastion of ADEQ. ADEQ reserves the

8 right w terminate this Consent Order unlarezelly at any time for any reason My tnnuination

9 will include a valuer eaqalanation of the rcaa0n{8) for termiunrtion.
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V/"aw Quality Division
Arizona Dopaxtmsnut of Environmental Qualify I
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Nancy mm Director
AI! .Quality Division
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality
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3 The undersigned, on behalf of Far West, hereby anknowl6dg05 that he has read true for¢80'mg

Consent Order in its entirety, agrees with the statements nnndc therein, oonscnts to its envy and

, ist\s=n°~ by the Arizona Deparuncnr of Buvinvnmematl Quality, and agrees that Far West will

abide by the same and waive any right to appeal therefrom . |
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DATED this ,2§¢1ay of / n ! 4 / / ,200§~
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Paula Capeotro. President
Far What Waxer & Sown, Ina.. I
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A RESOLUTION OF THE; BUAHU fJI~ UIHEU I UR5 UI- mn;
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE
COUNTY OF YUMA RELATING TO THE FINANCING,
REFINANCING, ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION,
REHABILITATION, IMPROVEMENT, EQUIPPING AND
OPERATION OF A PROJECT BY FAR WEST WATER &
SEWER, INC. AND GRANTING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL
TO THE ISSUANCE OF ITS WATER AND SEWER
REVENUE BONDS (FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.
PROJECT) SERIES 2007 OF THE INDUSTRIAL
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF YUMA
IN PRINCIPAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $32,500,000 TO
FINANCE THE PROJECT.

WHEREAS, The Industrial Development Authority of the County of Yuma (the
"Authority"), a nonprofit corporation designated a political subdivision of the State of
Arizona (the "State"), incorporated with the approval of the County of Yuma (the "County"),
pursuant to the provisions of the Constitution of the State and under Title 35, Chapter 5,
Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended (the "Act"), is authorized and empowered, among
other things (a) to issue its revenue bonds, for the purpose of carrying out any of its
Powers and for the purpose of financing the costs of a "project" (as defined in Section 35-
701, Arizona Revised Statutes, as amended), (b) to make loans of the proceeds from the
s.ale of its revenue bonds to any person to provide for financing and/or refinancing of
sewage facilities and facilities for furnishing of water located within the County and to
pledge all or any part of the revenues and receipts to be received by the Authority from or
in connection with such loans in order to secure the payment of the principal or redemption
price of and interest on such bonds, and (c) to enact this Resolution upon the terms and
conditions provided herein, and

WHEREAS, Far West Water 8< Sewer, Inc., or its nominee or nominees, (the
"Applicant"), an Arizona public service corporation has submitted an application to the
Authority requesting that the Authority issue its Water &Sewer Revenue Bonds (FarWest
Water & Sewer, Inc. Project) Series 2007 (the "Bonds") and loan the proceeds thereof to
the Applicant to finance .the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation, improvement,
equipping and operation of one or more sewage facilities and facilities for furnishing of
water located in the County of Yuma including the refinancing of Applicant's $17,785,000
Short Term Refunding and Capital Notes, Series 2006B ("Series 2006 Taxable Notes")
(collectively, the "Project"), to fund and capitalize any necessary reserves and to pay
certain costs and expenses incidental thereto, and

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes of the Act, the Authority is preliminarily
considering the issuance of the Bonds, the proceeds of which will be loaned to the
Applicant for the purposes stated above, and

I



WHEREAS, it is intended that the Authority take official action within the meaning of
the applicable provisions of the internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"),
and any regulations promulgated thereunder for the purpose of issuing the Bonds in an
amount not toexceed $32,500,000 for the purpose of loaning the proceeds thereof to the
Applicant for a term not to exceed 40 years at an interest rate not to exceed 9% (the
"Loan") to f inance and/or refinance all or a portion of the cost of the acquisiti.on,
construction, rehabilitation, improvement, equipping and operation of the Project, and

WHEREAS, the Applicant will agree in a loan agreement (the "Loan Agreement")
with the Authority to make payments sufficient to pay the principal of such Bonds and the
redemption premium, if any, and interest thereon and the Applicant by submitting its
application to the Authority, has agreed, and in that Loan Agreement with the Authority will
agree, to indemnify the Authority and the County of Yuma (the "County") for, from and
against, any and all expenses as may be incurred by the Authority, its board and staff
advisors (including reasonable attorney's fees) in connection with the financing and/or
refinancing of the Project, and

WHEREAS, the Authority intends that prior to the issuance of the Bonds, certain
costs relating to the Project, including those incurred and paid from the proceeds of the
Applicant's Series 2006 Taxable Notes (the "Expenditures") will be incurred and paid
from certain funds and accounts established and administered by the Applicant; and

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to express its current intent to reimburse certain
funds and accounts for all Expenditures related to the Project from the proceeds of the
Bonds or the notes and desires that, with respect to any tax-exempt obligations, such
reimbursement comply with Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), and

WHEREAS, the Authority has determined that the funds that have been or are to
be advanced to pay Expenditures by Applicant are or will be only for a temporary period
and it is necessary to reimburse Applicant with respect to the Project from the proceeds
of the Bonds, and . .

WHEREAS, as of the date hereof, there are no other funds of the Applicant from
sources other than the proceeds of the Bonds that are, or are reasonably expected to
be, reserved, allocated on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside by Applicant or any
member of the same to pay the Expenditures, and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to hire and appoint Jack, Lyon 8< Jones, P.A.,
Little Rook, Arkansas, as Bond Counsel ("Bond CounseI") and Crews & Associates,
Inc. Little Rock, Arkansas, as Underwriter ("Underwriter"), and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize the Applicant, Underwriter, Bond
Counsel and other representatives of the Applicant to apply to the Arizona Department
of Commerce for an allocation of volume cap that is necessary to the issuance of the

n
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Bonds

now. THEREFORE. BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF YUMA THAT

Section 1. The Board of Directors of the Authority finds and determines that the
issuance of the Bonds under the Act and the making of a loan to the Applicant for the
purpose of financing and/or refinancing the acquisition, construction, rehabilitation
improvement, equipping and operation of the Project and the costs and expenses
incidental thereto are in furtherance of the purposes of the Authority under the Act and the
Project will constitute a "project" within the meaning of the Act

Section2. The Authority grants preliminary approval to the issuance of the Bonds
pursuant to the Act in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $32,500,000, and to
the loaning of the proceeds thereof to the Applicant for a term not to exceed40years at an
interest rate not to exceed 9% per annum, to finance, or reimburse the Applicant for, all or
a portion of the costs of the Project and the costs and expenses that are incidental thereto
such Bonds to be secured by and payable from revenues or other payments to be derived
by the Authority under the terms of the Loan Agreement to be entered into between the
Authority and the Applicant. Final approval of the Authority relating to the issuance of the
Bonds is conditioned upon satisfaction of the requirements hereinbefore or hereinafter
imposed by the Authority, including, but not limited to, the following requirements

2.1 The Applicant must fully comply with all applicable policies of the Authority

2.2 An opinion of Jack, Lyon 8¢ Jones, P.A., as Bond Counsel in a form
acceptable to the Authority, that interest on the Bonds will be exempt from all
federal income taxes under existing statutes, regulations and court decisions
must be addressed to and provided to the Authority

2.3 The Applicant must deliver an opinion or opinions, addressed and in a form
acceptable to the Authority, prior to closing, to the effect that all of the
statements and information contained in the offering materials distributed in
connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds is correct and complete in all
material respects, and does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary
to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading

2.4 Prior to consideration of final approval by the Authority, the Applicant must
submit the bond purchase/placement agreement or Investor Letter (or other
purchase document) for the BondS in final form, including, without limitation
any exhibits, appendices or attachments, except for information pertaining to



the maturities, interest rates, yields and redemption provisions on the Bonds
in form and substance acceptable to Deason Law Firm, as the Authority's
legal advisor (the "Legal Advisor")

2.5 The Authority shall receive such legal opinions, certif icates and other
proceedings as are necessary and advisable to evidence compliance by the
Applicant and the other financing participants with the Authority's policies
and procedures and applicable federal and state laws as Legal Advisor may
deem necessary or appropriate, in the form and substance satisfactory to
the Legal Advisor

2.6 The Applicant shall pay, at or prior to the closing of the sale of the Bonds
(unless otherwise agreed to in writing by the Authority), all fees and
expenses of the Authority incurred in connection with the issuance and sale
of the Bonds and the financing and/or refinancing of the Project, including
without limitation, the fees and expenses of the Authority's Legal Advisor
The Applicant shall also pay the applicable Authority's annual fee for so long
as the Bonds are outstanding

2.7 The Authority will not execute any agreement, certificate, document or
instrument, or consent to the execution of any agreement, certif icate
document or instrument until it is in a form and substance acceptable to the
Legal Advisor

2.8 The Authority, its officers and directors, and the County must be provided
with full indemnification in connection with the issuance and sale of the
Bonds, in form and substance satisfactory to the Authority's Legal Advisor
from a credit-worthy source

2.9 All requirements imposed by the Code must be satisfied, including, without
limitation, the requirement of final approval by the Board of Supervisors of
the County of Yuma after a public hearing following reasonable notice

2.10 The Bonds shall bear such dates, mature at such time or times, bear interest
at such rate or rates and contain such other terms or provisions as shall be
determined in a subsequent bond resolution of the Authority. A t  a
subsequent date, the Applicant has indicated that it will request the Authority
to adopt a bond resolution that will authorize such Bonds and authorize and
direct off icers of the Authority to execute appropriate bond f inancing
documents, including, but not limited to, a trust indenture with a bond trustee
for such Bonds, the Loan Agreement with the Applicant, and a purchase
agreement relating to the sale of the Bonds with Underwriter, if necessary
provided that the principal amount and interest rates on such Bonds shall



not exceed the limits set forth in the bond resolution and the provisions of
such bond financing documents are approved by the Applicant and Legal
Advisor,

2.11 The Authority and the Applicant shall enter into the Loan Agreement, the
terms of which shall be agreeable to the Applicant and the Authority and in
the form and substance acceptable to Legal Advisor, and which shall
provide that the Applicant will be obligated to make payments sufficient (i) to
pay the principal of and redemption premium, if any, and interest on the
Bonds, as and when the same shall become due and payable and (ii) to
indemnify the Authority and the County for, from and against any and all
expenses relating to the issuance of the Bonds, including expenses incurred
by the Authority for regal counsel and otherwise,

2.12 Prior to closing, the Applicant shall provide to the Authority detailed
information relating to any litigation or potential litigation in which it is
currently involved.

2.13 Prior to closing, the Applicant shall provide evidence satisfactory to the
Authority's Legal Advisor of the financial feasibility of the Project as provided
bY Government Capital Corporation as Financial advisor ("Financial
Advisor").

Section 3. The Authority is hereby authorized to determine, in consultation with the
Applicant, a date for a public hearing on the plan of financing of the Project and the
proposed issuance of the Bonds, as required by Section 147(t) of the Code, and to publish
a public notice of such hearing in such form as approved by the Applicant and Bond
Counsel.

Section 4. Legal Advisor and officers of the Authority are hereby authorized and
directed to prepare and disseminate, or cause to be prepared and disseminated any
necessary related documents and agreements with respect to the proposed issuance of
the Bonds

All actions of the officers, staff, directors and agents of the Authority which are in
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance thereof
whether heretofore or hereafter taken, shall be and are hereby ratified, confirmed and
approved. The proper officers, staff, directors and agents of the Authority are hereby
authorized and directed to/do all such acts on behalf of the Authority as may be deemed
necessary or desirable to carry out the terms and intent of this Resolution



Section 5. Nothing contained in this Resolution nor in any other instrument may be
considered as obligating the Authority or the County to any pecuniary liability or charge
upon the general credit of the Authority or the County. Furthermore, it is understood that
no costs are to be borne by the Authority with respect tO the Project and the issuance and
sale of the Bonds, and that the Applicant will promptly reimburse the Authority for any
other expenses reasonably incurred by the Authority, including the fees of its Legal
Advisor, whether or not the Bonds are issued or sold

Section 6. The Authority reasonably expects to reimburse Applicant for original
Expenditures to be paid by Applicant from general funds of Applicant or from the Series
2006 Taxable Notes in connection with the Project with the proceeds of the Bonds. it is
the intent of the Authority that this Resolution declaration of official intent intended to
comply with the requirements of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-2(e)

Section 7. The Authority hereby hires and appoints Jack, Lyon & Jones, P.A., Little
Rock, Arkansas, as Bond Counsel and Crews & Associates, Inc., Little Rock,
Underwriter. The Authority further authorizes Bond Counsel, Legal Advisor, Underwriter
and Applicant to do all things necessary to apply for and receive an allocation of volume
cap for the Bonds from the Arizona Department of Commerce

Arkansas, as

Section 8, If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution is for
any reason held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability of such
section, paragraph, clause or provision does not affect any of the remaining provisions of
this Resolution

Section 9. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict with the provisions
of this Resolution are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby repealed, and this Resolution
shall be in immediate effect from aNd after its adoption

Section 10. Any provisions of any bylaws, orders, procedural pamphlets and
resolutions of the Authority inconsistent herewith are hereby waived to the extent only of
such inconsistency. This waiver shall not be construed as repealing any bylaw, order
procedural pamphlet or resolution or any part thereof

Section 11. Arizona Revised Statutes Section 38-511 requires that every contract
to which the State, its political subdivisions or any of the departments or agencies of the
State or its political subdivisions is a party include notice that such contract is subject to
cancellation, within three years after its execution, by the State, political subdivision
department or agency which is a party to such contract if any person significantly involved
in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the contract on behalf of the State
political subdivision, department or agency is, at any time while the contract is in effect, an
employee of any other party to the contract or an agent or consultant of any other party to
the contract with respect to the subject matter of the contract



Section 12. It is found and determined that all formal actions of the Authority and its
Board concerning and relating to the adoption of this Resolution were adopted in an open
meeting and that all deliberations that resulted in those formal actions were in meetings
open to the public, in compliance with all legal requirements of the State and the Authority.

Section 13; Prior to final approval of this request for issuance of bonds, Applicant
shall comply with such conditions and requests as may be imposed by the Authority,
including, without limitation, the execution of an Agreement substantially in the form of
Exhibit A attached hereto, the execution of which by the President or Vice President and
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby approved and authorized.

Section 14. This Resolution is effective immediately.

[Remainder of Page Left Blank Intentionally]



Adopted this da y of June , 2007

THE INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT

AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF YUMA

By
Title: Ffesident
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THIS  MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (some time s  re fe rre d to a s  P re limina ry
Agre e m e nt) be twe e n  THE INDUS TRIAL DEVELO P MENT AUTHO RITY O F  THE CO UNTY
O F YUMA, ARIZO NA, (the  "AUTHO R1TY"),  a nd  FAR WES T WATER & S EWER, INC.,  a n
Arizona  corpora tion, (he re ina fte r re fe rred to a s  the  "AP P LICANT").

1. P re limina ry S ta tement. Among Me matte rs  of mutua l inducement which resulted
in the  execution of aNs Agreement a re  the  following:

A. The  AUTHORITY wa s  duly orga nize d unde r Title  35, Cha pte r 5, of the
Arizona  Re vis e d S ta tute s  (the  "Act") a s  THE INDUS TRIAL DEVELOP MENT AUTHORITY OF
THE COUNTY OF YUMA, ARIZONA. Unde r the  Act,  the  AUTHORITY is  a  p0litiga l s ubdivi-
s ion of the  S ta te  of Arizona  and has  the  power to iS sue  its  Bonds  for the  purpose  of financing the
a cquis ition, ins ta lla tion, or cons truction of la nd, buildings  a nd e quipme nt which sha ll be  suita ble
for us e  by the  AP P LICANT a ll for the  purpos e  of incre a s ing the  a va ila bility of m e nta l he a lth
se rvice s  in a nd a bout the  County of Yuma , Arizona , a nd upon such te rms  a nd conditions  a s  the
Board of Directors  of the  AUTHORITY deem advisable  and as  authorized by the  Act.

B. The  AP P LICANT propose s  to a cquire , cons truct; re ha bilita te , improve ,
a nd ope ra te  one  or more  s e wa ge  fa cilitie s  a nd fa cilitie s  for furnis hing of wa te r loca te d in the
County of Yum a  including the  re fina ncing of Applica nt's  $17,735,000 S hort Te rm  Re funding
a Nd Ca pita l Note s , S e rie s  2006B ("S e rie s  2006 Ta xa ble  Note s") (colle ctive ly, the  "P roje ct")

It is  a nticipa te d tha t the  cos t of the  P roje ct will not e xce e d THIRTY-TWO MILLION FIVE
HUNDRED THOUS AND AND N0/100 ($32,500,000.00) DOLLARS . Monie s  will be  provide d
from the  proceeds of the  Industria l Deve lopment Revenue  Bonds to be  issued by the  AUTHORITY
Which proce e ds  will be  loa ne d by the  AUTHORITY to the  AP P LICANT for such purpose s  a nd be
repa id by the  AP P LICANT in amounts  sufficient to pay the  principa l of the  Bonds and the  premium
(if any) and inte res t on the  Bonds.

C. The  AUTHORITY ha s  indica te d its  willingne s s  to  proce e d with the
issuance  of the  Bonds a s  provided by the  Act and has  advised the  AP P LICANT tha t subject to due
complia nce  with a ll re quire me nts  of la w, de monstra te d fina ncia l ca pa city, a nd the  obta ining of a ll
ne ce ssa ry conse nts  a nd a pprova ls  a nd the  ha ppe ning of a ll a cts , conditions  a nd things  re quire d
pre ce de nt to  s uch fina ncing, the  AUTHORITY, purs ua nt to  the  Act,  will is s ue  the  Bonds  in  a
principa l amount sufficient to acquire , construct and equip the  facilitie s  and pay the  costs  of issuing
the  Bonds.

D. The  AUTHO RITY c ons ide rs  tha t the  a c qu is ition ,  c ons truc ting ,
e quipping a nd fina ncing of the  P roje ct for the  AP P LICANT will promote  a nd furthe r the  purpose s
of the  Act, se rve  a  public purpose , and genera lly prompt public hea lth, we lfa re , sa fe ty, convenience
and prospe rity of the  re s idents  of the  County of Yuma, Arizona .

2. Unrle rrakings rm the  Part of` the  AI ITHGRTTY, S ubject to the  conditions  s ta ted
in this  Agre e me nt, the  AUTHORITY a gre e s  a s  follows :
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1
A. The  AUTHORITY will is sue  the  Bonds  pursua nt to the  te rms  a t' the  Act

and upon the  te rms and conditions  mutua lly sa tis factory to the  AP P LICANT and the  AUTHORITY
in a  principa l amount sufficient to pay the  cos ts  of acquiring and equipping the  P roject and to pay
the  costs  incident to die  authoriza tion, sa le  and issuance  of the  Bonds, not to exceed an aggrega te
p rin c ip a l a m o u n t c f THIR TY-TW O  MILLIO N F IVE  HUNDR E D THO US AND AND N0 /1 0 0
($32,500,000.00) DOLLARS .

B. The  AUTHORITY will a dopt s uch proce e dings  a nd a uthorize  (i) the
e xe cution a nd de live ry of such docume nts  a s  ma y be  re a sona bly ne ce ssa ry or a dvisa ble  for the
a uthoriza tion, is sua nce  a nd sa le  of the  Bonds , (ii) the  e xe cution of a  Loa n Agre e me nt with the
AP P LICANT, (iii) the  e xe cution of a  Bond P urcha s e  Agre e me nt with the  AP P LICANT a nd the
Underwrite r and such other documents as sha ll be  authorized by the  Act or other law and as sha ll be
mutua lly sa tis fa ctory to die  AUTHORITY a nd the  AP P LICANT.

C. The  AUTHORITY s ha ll s ubmit the  proce e dings  purs ua nt to which the
Bonds will be  issued to the  Board of Supervisors  of the  County of Yuma, Arizona , for due  approva l
of tha t Body, Bonds will be  issued only a fte r such approva l has been obta ined.

D. The  AUTHORITY s ha ll notify the  Attorne y Ge ne ra l of the  S ta te  of
Arizona  of its  inte ntion to is sue  the  Bonds  a s  provide d by A.R.S . S e c. 35-721(F), Bonds  will be
is s ue d only if the  Attorne y Ge ne ra l doe s  not re nde r a  ne ga tive  opinion within te n (10) da ys  of
submis s ion a s  to whe the r the  P roje ct come s  within the  purvie w of Cha pte r 5, Title  35, Arizona
Revised Statutes.

E. The  AUTHORITY will conduct a  public he a ring prior to clos ing for the
purpose  of e liciting public comment conce rning this  P roject. Notice  will be  published in a  newspa -
pe r having gene ra l circula tion in the  Yuma  a rea  a t le a s t fourteen (14) days  prior to the  da te  of the
he a ring. The  notice  will spe cify the  is sue r, the  ma ximum principa l a mount of the  propose d issue ,
the  specific loca tion, brie f description of, and the  intended use  of the  proposed facility as well as  the
names of the  principa l use rs , a ll a s  sha ll be  approved by Bond Counse l. Bonds  will be  issued only
after public comment has been received and evaluated and arguments both for and against weighed,
and the  AUTHORITY de te rmines  tha t Bond issuance  is  s till in the  public inte re s t

F. Th e  AUTHO R ITY will ta ke  s u c h  o th e r  a c ts  a n d  a d o p t  fu rth e r
proceedings as  may reasonably be  required to implement the  a foresa id undertakings and as  it may
deem appropria te  in pursuance  thereof.

G. The  Bonds  s ha ll provide  tha t the y s ha ll be  pa ya ble  s ole ly out of a nd
se cure d by a  ple dge  of re ve nue s , proce e ds  a nd re ce ipts  out of which the  principa l, re de mption
premium and inte rest a re  made  payable  pursuant to the  provisions of the  Loan Agreement, tha t they
sha ll never constitute  a  debt of indebtedness of the  AUTHORITY, the  County of Yuma, or the  S ta te
of Arizona  within the  me a ning of a ny cons titutiona l or s ta tutory provis ion wha tsoe ve r of the  S ta te
of Arizona ,  a nd  tha t the y s ha ll no t cons titu te  o r g ive  ris e  to  a ny pe cun ia ry lia b ility o f the
AUTHORITY, the  County of Yuma , or the  S ta te  of Arizona , nor s ha ll the y cons titute  a  cha rge
against the  genera l credit or taxing Powers of any such bodies
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4 3. Undertakings  on the  P a rt Of the  AP P T ICANT. S ubje ct to the  conditions  in this

Agreement, the  AP P LICANT agrees  a s  follows: .
A. The  AP P LICANT will use  the  Bond proceeds  loaned to it pursuant to the

Loan Agreement to ente r into one  or more  contracts  for the  acquisition, construction and equipping
of the  P roject.

B. Be fore  the  de live ry of the  Bonds , the  AP P LICANT will e nte r into a  Loa n
Agre e m e nt with the  AUTHORITY unde r the  te rm s  of which (i) the  AUTHORITY will loa n the
Bond proce e ds  to the  AP P LICANT for the  a cquis ition, cons truction a nd e quipping of the  P roje ct,
and (ii) to the  extent not payable  out of the  proceeds  of the  Bonds, the  AP P LICANT will pay to the
AUTHO RITY s um s s uffic ie n t in  the  a ggre ga te  to  pa y or re im burs e  the  AUTHO RITY for a ll
expenses incurred by it in connection with the  authoriza tion, issuance  and sa le  of the  Bonds, includ-
ing re a s ona ble  a ttorne y's  fe e s , a nd (iii) the  AP P LICANT will m a ke  or ca us e  to be  m a de  loa n
payments  or othe r payments  sufficient to pay the  principa l of and inte re s t and premium, if any, on
the Bonds as and when the same shall become due and payable , a ll fees and expenses of any trustee
for the  be ne fit of die  holde rs  of the  Bonds  incurre d unde r a ny trus t inde nture , a ll utility cha rge s ,
taxes, a ssessments , casua lty and liability insurance  premiums, and any other expenses or charges
re la ting to die  ownership, use , opera tion, ma intenance , occupancy and upkeep of the  P roject, such
Loan Agreement to conta in such othe r provis ions  a s  may be  required by law and sha ll be  mutua lly
acceptable  to the  AUTHORITY and the  AP P LICANT and (iv) provide  such security for the  loan a s
die  parties  sha ll mutua lly agree  upon and as sha ll be  approved by Bond Counse l, and (v) indemnify
the  AUTHORITY to its  s a tis fa ction from a ny a nd a ll lia bility re s ulting from the  is s ua nce  of the
Bonds or acquisition, construction or equipping the  P roject and the  opera tion the reof

C. The  AP P LICANT will ta ke  s uch furthe r a ction a nd a dopt s uch furthe r
proceedings  a s  may be  required to implement its  a foresa id underta ldngs or a s  it may deem appro-
pria te  in pursuance  the reof

D. The  AP P LICANT m a y,  a t its  option ,  s e le c t a n  unde rwrite r for the
purcha se  a nd sa le  of the  Bonds  provide d tha t die  AUTHORITY sha ll not incur a ny lia bility for the
payment of the  fees  and expenses of sa id underwrite r except tha t the  same may be  pa id out of due
proceeds of the  sa le  of Bonds.

E. The  AP P LICANT will, prior to a nd a s  a  pre condition of clos ing, comply
with  a nd  s a tis fy the  p rov is ions  c on ta ine d  in  the  AUTHO RITY'S  "P o lic y a nd  P roc e dure s ",
pre vious ly provide d to AP P LICANT, toge the r with such Additiona l Conditions  a s  de te rmine d by
the  AUTHORITY and as  more  specifica lly se t forth on Exhibit A, a ttached he re to, and incorpora ted
here in by this  re fe rence .

F. Any a ttorney or a ttorneys  se lected a s  Bond Counse l by the  AP P LICANT
sha ll have  a  reputa tion in due  bonding fie ld as  Bond Counse l and be  genera lly recognized as  such,
and the  AUTHORITY sha ll not incur any liability for the  payment of the  fee s  and expenses  of sa id
Bond Counsel except tha t the  same may be  paid out of the  proceeds of the  sa le  of Bonds.

G. AP P LICANT a gre e s  to  pa y to  the  AUTHO RITY the  ba la nce  of its
THREE THOUS AND FEE HUNDRED AND N0/100 DOLLAR ($3,500.00) Applica tion Fe e  on
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sigNing dies Agreement, and the APPLICANT agrees to do so within ten (10) days of the date of the
resolution.

H. The  AP P LICANT a gre e s  to provide  pe riodic  progre s s  re ports  to the
AUTHORITY during the  pe riod be twe e n the  AUTHORITY'S  initia l a pprova l a nd fina l a pprova l
and supply a ll information reasonably requested by it.

I. The APPLICANT will involve the AUTHORITY in document
preparation and solicit the AUTHOR1TY.'S comments concerning any documents drafted.

J. The  AP P LICANT a cknowle dge s  tha t a ll re pre s e nta tions  ma de  to the
AUTHORITY have  been true  and correct and sha ll be  deemed continuing. Any ma te ria l change  in
the  fina ncia l circums ta nce s  of the  AP P LICANT or a ny fa ct be coming known to the  AP P LICANT
during the  Bonding proce s s  which would a ffe ct the  a ccura cy of s uch re pre s e nta tions  s ha ll be
promptly ma de  known by the  AP P LICANT to the  AUTHORITY.

4. General Pmvisinns.

A. A11 commitments  of the  AUTHORITY under S ection 2 he reof and of the
AP P LICANT unde r S e ction 3 he re of a re  subje ct to the  conditions  tha t on or be fore  one  (1) ye a r
from  the  da te  of this  Agre e m e nt, the  AUTHORITY a nd the  AP P LICANT s ha ll ha ve  a gre e d to
mutua lly a cce pta ble  te rms  for the  Bonds  a nd for the  is s ua nce , s a le  a nd de live ry the re of, a nd
mutua lly a cce pta ble  te rms a nd conditions  for the  Loa n Agre e me nt, Trus t Inde nture  a nd a ny othe r
documents  re fe rred to in S ections  2 and 3 he reof, and the  AUTHORITY and the  AP P LICANT sha ll
have  complied with a ll of the  provis ions  of the  Act applicable  to the  issuance , sa le  and de live ry of
the  Bonds.

B. Regardless of whether or not the Project proceeds to completion aNd the
Bonds are sold, the APPLICANT agrees that the AUTHORITY shall retain the entire Application
Fee, without necessity of accounting, and APPLICANT will, in addition, pay the AUTI-IORITY'S
reasonable legal fees, costs, expenses and charges.

C. In the  event AP P LICANT is  successful in obta ining issuance  of Bonds  to
fina nce  its  proje ct, a nd s o long a s  a ny Bonds  re ma in outs ta nding, AP P LICANT a gre e s  tO pa y
annua lly its  pro ra ta  sha re  of AUTHORITY opera ting expenses  based upon the  re la tive  proportions
of bonds  is sue d to fina nce  a ll proje cts . In no e ve nt sha ll tha t a mount e xce e d TWO THOUS AND
AND N0 / 1 0 0  DO LLAR S  ($ 2 , 0 0 0 . 0 0 )  o r  b e  le s s  t h a n  O NE  T HO US AND AND N0 / I0 0
DOLLARS  ($l,000.00) pe r a nnum pe r a pplica nt.

D. The  AP P LICANT he re by cove na nts  a nd a gre e s  to prote ct, e xone ra te ,
de fend, indemnify and save  ha rmle ss  the  AUTHORITY from and aga ins t any and a ll cla ims, loss ,
da ma ge , cos ts , e xpe nse  or lia bility, including witne ss  fe e s , le ga l fe e s  a nd cos ts  incurre d by the
AUTHORITY as  a  re sult of same , based on pe rsona l injury or dea th or loss  or damage  to prope rty
cla ime d, suffe re d or incurre d by a ny pe rson, firm or corpora tion (including the  AUTHORITY) a nd
a ris ing out of or a ttributa ble  to the  cons truction, condition, use , ope ra tion, ma inte na nce  a nd/or
fina ncing of the  P roje ct, a ny disclosure , re pre se nta tion or wa rra nty ma de  by the  AP P LICANT in
connection with the  issuance  or sa le  of the  Bonds,
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E. Ne ithe r the  members  of the  gove rning body of the  Authority nor any
official, agent, representative or employee of the Authority nor any person executing the bonds shall
be liable personally on the bonds or be subject to any personal liability or accountability by reason
of theissuance thereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the  parties  have  entered into this  Agreement this _,Za
day ofllme , 2007.

THE INDUS TRIAL DEVELOP MENT
AUTHORITY OF THE COUNTY OF
YUMA, ARIZONA

FAR WEST WATER & SEWER, INC.

n

By
'

By, //
Its

. "Q
KEWDEMT

*



to Me mora ndum of Agre e me nt

Additiona l Conditions  Re quire d of
AP P LICANT P rior to Clos ing

Submission to the  AUTHORITY of a ll proposed financing documents  in a  time ly manner

S ubmis s ion to the  AUTHORITY, upon the ir comple tion, the  pla ns  Md spe cifica tions  for
the  proposed facilities

S u b m is s io n  to  th e  AUTHO R ITY o f c o rp o ra te  re c o rd s  fo r F AR  W E S T W ATE R  &
S EWER, INC., including but not limite d to, Article s  of Incorpora tion, Byla ws , re solution
re la ting to the  fina ncing of the  "P roje ct" fa cilitie s  a nd good s ta nding ce rtifica te s  from a ll
jurisdictions  in which this  corpora tion is  authorized to do business

The Bond transaction must be closed and the Bonds issued within one (1) year from the date
of the issuance of the Resolution of Inducement

AP P LICANT sha ll have  secured priva te  placement of the  Bonds  with a  iinanqia l ins titution
or othe r pa rty s a tis fa ctory to the  AUTHORITY, or s ha ll ha ve  re ta ine d the  s e rvice s  of a
Bond unde rwriting firm  a cce pta ble  to the  AUTHORITY for purpos e s  of m a rke ting the
Bonds  publicly

S ubmiss ion to the  AUTHORITY of compile d fina ncia l s ta te me nts  a nd Fe de ra l income  ta x
re turns  for the  pas t three  (3) yea rs  for AP P LICANT

Ap p lic a n t 's  p a ym e n t in  th e  a m m m t o f O NE  THO US AND AND N0 /1 0 0  DO LLAR S
($1,000.00) which is  the  re ma ining ba la nce  of the  Applica tion Fe e  is  due  a nd pa ya ble
within ten (10) days firm the  issuance  of the  Resolution of Inducement

The  pa yme nt, .a t clos ing, of a ll e xpe nse s  incurre d by the  AUTHORITY in proce ss ing the
a pplica tion a nd is s uing the  Bonds , including but not lim ite d to, fe e s  a nd cos ts  of le ga l
counse l
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Assets :
Ma rke t va lue Cost Deprecia ted cost

Land: 71.59 acres a t $50,000
a n  a c re $3,579,500

Land a t cos t: $902,709 $902,709

Water Trea tment facilities  : $12,484,684 $9,220,074

Cost less  deprecia tion $4,997,749

Wa te r Dis tribution $14,503,950 $14,503,950

Cost less  deprecia tion
$11,463,185

Water meters $584,306 $584,306

Cost less  deprecia tion $244,687

Wate r Wells $569,306 $569,272

Cost less  deprecia tion $287,054

Pumping Equipment not included
above $305,737 $305,737

Cost less  deprecia tion $181,668

1

Tota ls  (without la nd) $28,447,949 $25,183,339 $17,174,343



Ma rke t va lue Deprecia ted cost

Wa ste wa te r tre a tme nt
fa c ilitie s $8,175,519 $6,757,581

Cost less  deprecia tion $5 _314.429

Collection Systems $9,088,837 $9,088,837

$8,058,530Cost less  deprecia tion
Tota ls  (Wa s te wa te r) $17,264,356 $155846,418 $13,372,959

Cash in cons truction
Account $11,233,870 $11.233.870 $11,233,870

Construction in progress 344.811,326 $4,811,326 $4.811.326

Grand tota ls $65.337,001 $57.977,662 $47,495,207

Ne w P la nts  to be  built $23.876,211 $23,876,211 $23_876_211

Tota ls  with ne w pla nt $89,213,212 $81,853,873 $71,371,418



Acre a ge Parcel number Description

25.38 112 09 001 Land at canal with raw water pump station

8.60 728 20 907 Water P lant
3.80 701 09 002 Mesa Del Sol Pump Station

3.03 701 21 002A Hanks Highway Pump Station

4.00 701 21 003A Hanks Highway Pump Station

1 .24 701 34 156A Orange Tree Wells
1 .49 701 42 143 Far West Ave Pump Station
1.87 701 42 144 Far West Ave Pump Station
1 .94 701 50 277B Far West Ave Pump Station
1.92 701 57 900 40th Street Pump Station

0.34 702 18 020 Foothills North Pump Station

0.67 728 53 900 52nd Street Wells

Water Land

Total Acreage 54.28

Deeds available upon request



Acreage Parcel number Description
1.91 14-700-16-150-00-2 Del Oro WWTP
2.87 14-729-17-003-00-5 Section 14 WWTP

10.00 14-112-20-040-03-7 Palm Shadows WWTP

1.41 14-700-01-037-00-4 Seasons WWTP
2.19 14-729~57-137B Marwood WWTP
0.08 14-729-33-045A Lift Station 15

1,

.Q

Sewer Land

Total Acreage 18.49

Deeds available upon request
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Far West Water & Sewer, Inc.
Proforma Balance Sheet

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Exhibit 6
Page 1

Line
No .

ASSETS
Plant In Service $ 61,878,3t6

Non-Utility Plant
Construction Work in Progress
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Plant $

(11,701,695)
50,176,621

$ 362,070
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents
Restricted Cash
Accounts Receivable, Net
Other Accounts Receivable
Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid Income taxes
Other Current Assets

Total Current Assets

,1 ,091 ,ass
59,010
79,817

100,080

$ 1 ,692,630

Other Assets
Unamortized Debt Discount
Placement Agent Fees
Debt Reserve Fund
Deferred rate Case Expense
Deferred Debits

$ 1 ,134,675
182,834
940,325
332,263

2,590,097

Other Investments & Special Funds

$

$

TOTAL ASSETS $ 54,459,348

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQulTv

Shareholder Equity $ 5,057,585

Long-Term Debt $ 24,880,000

$ 578,107
335,000

\

$

2,373,299
239,568

34,392
182,746
163,559
166,456

4,073,127

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt
Short-term Bank Loan
Payables to Associated Companies
Deposits and Repayments
Accrued W ages
Accrued Taxes
Accrued Interest
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

DEFERRED CREDITS
Advances in Aid of Construction
Contributions In Aid of Construction, Net
Judgment Payable
Total Deferred Credits

$ 14,768,869
4,471,102
1 ,208,665

20,448,636

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29

30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54

55

Total Liabilities & Common Equity

$

$ 54,459,348



Far West Water and Sewer. Inc Exhibit 6
Page 2Proforma Income Statement

For the Year Ended December 31. 2006

Revenues
Operating Revenue $ 7,709,211

Total Revenues
Operating Expenses

$ 7,709,211

Administrative and General
Maintenance
Purchased Water. Sewer. Power
Depreciation and Amortization
Property and other Taxes
Legal Expense
Income Taxes

$ 2,016,797
1.281.756
1.093.094
1.980.944

391.134
200.131

14
15
16
17

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income
Other Income (Expense)

$
$

6,963,856
745,355

20

Interest Income
Other income
Interest Expense
Fines. Penalties and Restitution
Other Expense

(1,541,875)
(210,000)

23
24

25

Total Other Income (Expense)
Net Profit (Loss)

$
$

<1 ,751 ,875)
(1 ,006,520)



Far West Water and Sewer, Inc.
Proforma Capital Structure

For the Year Ended December 31, 2006

Exhibit 6
Page 3

Dollar
Amount

Percent
of

Total

Long-term Debt $ 25,215,000 83.29%

Shareholder Equity 5,057,585 16.71 %

Line
No. Item of Capital
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

Total

$

$ 30,272,585 100.00%



u

»

Far West Water and Sewer Company
Debt Service Coverage ("DSC") and Times Interest Earned Ratio ("TIER")

Exhibit 6
Page 4

[1] Operating Income Per 2006 Pro-forma Financial Statements
Add:

$ 745,355

Depreciation and Amorlization
Income Taxes
Non-Recurring Legal Expenses
Rate Increase for Sewer Division (A,C.C. 69335, Feb. 20, 2007)
Debt Service Reserve Cream"

1 ,980,944[2]
[3]
[4]
[5]
[6] 60,315

Less:

(71
[8]

Refunds of Advances-in-aid of Construction
Oth9l'3

285,000
210,000

[9] Cash Available for Debt Service $ 2,291,614

$ 1 ,541 ,a15
335,000

1 ,876,875

[10]
[11]
[12]

Interest'
Principles
Annual Debt Service [9] plus [10] $

Line

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
8
g

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29

[13]
[14]

Dec H91 divided by [12]
TIER [1] plus [3] divided by [10]

1.22
0.48

1 2008 Interest per Debt Service Schedule dated 07-24-2007
2 2008 Principle per Debt Service Schedules dated 07-24-2007
s Contigenl liabilities for fine and penalties of $210,000 annually included. Case is currently under appeal.

See notes to audited financials.
4 Funded out of initial loan proceeds.
5 $376,480 of non-recurring legal fees are already excluded from pro-forma operating income.
s $205,384 rate increase for sewer division is already included in pro-forma operating income.
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RES OLUTION OF FAR WES T WATER AND S EWER, INC,
AUTHO R IZING AP P LICATION TO 'THE INDUS TRIAL
DE VE LQ P ME NT AUTHO R ITY O F THE  COUNTY OF YUMA AND THE
AR IZONA DE P AR TME NT OF C OMME R C E  FOR AP P ROVAL OF
IS S UANCE O F  WATE R AND S EWER BONDS  NOT TO EXCEED
$32,500,000.

WHEREAS FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED has  been required
by the  S ta te  of Arizona to expand and improve its  sewer facilities ; and

WHEREAS, FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED is desirous of
expanding its water drinking facilities to meet the growth being experienced in the region
serviced by Far West Water and Sewer, Inc.; and

WHEREAS, FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED has received bids,
projections and contracts, both proposed and entered, exceeding the ability of Far West to pay
without financing at a reasonable rate; and

WHEREAS, FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED has obtained short
term financing in the amount of $17,735,000 to pay for the expansion and improvements
required by the State, which must be paid on or before December 27, 2007, and

WHEREAS, the officers of the Corporation have researched and investigated various
options for that financing and have reported that the most reasonable financing for the Company
would be through bonds approved and issued by the Industrial Development Authority,

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: That the Corporation is authorized to apply to the
Industrial Development Authority of the County of Yuma for the issuance of bonds not to exceed
$32,500,000, at an interest rate not to exceed 9%, with a term not to exceed 40 years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: tha t the  Pres ident of Far Wes t sha ll be  authorized
to s ign such documents  as  may be necessary to process  this  application, including, but not limited
to the  s igning of agreements  with the  Yuma County IDA, making any and a ll depos its  required
by such organization, and reques ting an a llocation from the  Sta te  of Arizona upon receiving
approva l from the  Yuma County IDA

Dated: June 12, 2007 FAR WES T WATER AND S EWER, INC.

,4 ,5

Sandra Braden, Secretary
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RESOLUTION OF FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INC,
AUTHORIZING APPLICATION CORPORATION COMMISSION FOR
THE STATE OF ARIZONA TO APPROVE LONG TERM FINANCING

WHEREAS FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED obtained the
agreement and preliminary approval of the INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF
THE COUNTY OF YUMA to issue of bonds not to exceed $32,500,000, and

WHEREAS, FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED has obtained the
allocation required by the State Department of Commerce for the Yuma County IDA to issue
such bonds, and

WHEREAS, FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INCORPORATED must now obtain
the approval of the Arizona Corporation Commission to proceed with the issuance of such bonds,

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED: that the Corporation is authorized to apply to the Arizona
Corporation Commission to obtain approval of the financing contemplated by the agreement with
Me Yuma County IDA, in an amount necessary to comply with the consent order signed by the
President of the Corporation with the Arizona Department of Environmental Quality for the
improvement and expansion of the wastewater treatment plants and related facilities, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Corporation is authorized to also request that the
loan presently with WIFA be refinanced as part of the bond issue, and that the financing include
the related costs, discounts and other matters relating to the bonds, and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that the Corporation is authorized to apply for the short
term debt incurred by the Company required to comply with the Consent Order, be included in
the Bond issue.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That the  P resident, Paula  Capestro, is  authorized to sign
any and all documents on behalf of the Corporation that made be reasonable necessary to caLn'y
out this  re solution.

Dated: July 7, 2007 FAR WEST WATER AND SEWER, INC.

Andra Braden, Secretary


